
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Wednesday, 12th January, 2022 
 at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 

 
NOTE: Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 15th December, 2021 
 

5 - 8 



 

 
7.   Public Participation 

 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Grounds Maintenance Contract for Housing Service   
 
To consider the Grounds Maintenance Contract for Housing Service 
 

    9 - 12 

(D) 9.   The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking Places) Order 
2022   
 
To consider the Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off 
Street Parking Places) Order 2022 (“TRO 2022”). 
 

  13 - 126 

(D) 10.   High Street Heritage Action Zone Public Realm   
 
To delegate authority for the appointment of an external contractor to 
deliver the public realm improvements as set out in the High Street 
Heritage Action Zone application. 
 

127 - 130 

(D) 11.   Future Management Arrangements on Piel Island   
 
To consider the future management arrangements for Piel Island.   

 

131 - 136 

(D) 12.   Procurement Strategy   
 
To consider the revised Procurement Strategy. 
 

137 - 148 

(R) 13.   Officer Delegation Scheme   
 
To consider the review of Officer delegations ahead of the annual 

review of the Constitution following recent structural changes. 

 

 

149 - 188 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

 
(R) 14.   Code of Conduct and Guidance Review   

 
To consider the LGA Model Code as amended by the Cumbrian 
Monitoring Officers, and accompanying guidance for adoption. 
 
 

189 - 220 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Brook (Chairman) 

L. Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
Barlow 
Biggins 
Blezard 
H. Edwards 
Hamilton 
W. McClure 
Maddox 
Morgan 
Pemberton 
Ronson 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 

 Jon Huck 
Democratic Services Manager 
01229 876312 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday, 4 January 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Meeting: Wednesday 15th December 2021 
at 2.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 
 

PRESENT:- Councillors Brook (Chairman), Barlow, Burns, Hamilton, McClure, 
McLeavy, Maddox, Morgan and Pemberton. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head of 
Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Ian Slee (Interim Corporate Support 
Manager) (Minute Nos. 91 to 99 and 101) , Caroline Wagstaff (Operations Manager - 
Housing) (Minute Nos. 91 to 99 and 101) and Jon Huck (Democratic Services 
Manager). 
 
91 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Blezard, Biggins, H. 
Edwards and Roberts. 
 

Councillors Burns and McLeavy had substituted for Councillors Roberts and H. 
Edwards for this meeting only. 
 
92 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 

(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006  

Discussion arising hereon it was:- 
 

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 3 (Minute Nos. 99 to 101) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 
93 – Minutes 
 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 10th November and the Extraordinary meeting 
held on 30th November, 2021 were agreed as a correct record. 
 
94 – Public Participation 
 

RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



95 – Council Finances Quarter 2 2021-2022 
 
The Director of Resources report presented a summary of the General Fund financial 
monitoring as at 31st October 2021, an update regarding the Medium Term Financial 
forecast, the Housing Benefit Subsidy, Additional Restrictions Grant, Treasury 
Management, Reserves, Capital Programme, Medium Term Financial Plan and 
Establishment Changes. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns  and seconded by Councillor Hamilton, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1.  To note the General Fund financial monitoring at 31st October 2021; 

2. To note the budget pressures from income losses noted in the report and their impact on 
the Council’s financial position; 

3. To agree that the balance of the Additional Restrictions Grant be distributed to 
an organisation providing borough-wide business support as part of the recovery 
from Covid-19; 

4. To approve the revised Capital Programme; 

5. To agree to the purchase of Microsoft Surface Devices for Members, funded from 
reserves; 

6.  To agree to the purchase of a replacement Microphone System, funded from 
reserves; 

7.  To note the current projection of reserves at 31 March 2022; 

8. To agree to create a Capital Programmes Manager with the salary £59k-£62k, 
Deputy Chief Officer level, funded by the major project grants and if recruitment 
was unsuccessful delegate the Capital Programme Consultancy award to the 
Director of People and Place to be run concurrently; 

9. To agree to delegate the recruitment of the Capital Programmes Manager to the 
Director of People and Place; and 

10. To agree to the temporary arrangement for the Director of People and Place to 
take on key work and deputise for the Chief Executive as appropriate due to 
Local Government Reorganisation commitments. 

 
96 – Digital and ICT Strategy and Action Plan 
 

The Interim Corporate Support Manager’s report set out what initiatives the Council 
would undertake to develop and deploy Digital and related Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT) infrastructure, applications and services, during 
the period leading up to the vesting of the new Westmorland and Furness Unitary 
Authority in April 2023. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



The aim of the strategy was to: Deliver the Digital and ICT enablers required to achieve 
the ambitions in the Council Plan and specifically the Customer Services Strategy; 
Provide Council staff and members with the technologies and services required for the 
current and post-Covid workplace; Align the development of the Council’s ICT 
infrastructure, and application estate in line with the development of the new Unitary 
Authority’s ICT strategy and integration roadmap; Continued improvement of the 
Council’s cyber security and resilience capabilities; and Ensure the current and future 
ICT provision meets the Council’s requirements and to remediate any aspects of the 
provision which generate risk to the Council in the delivery of its obligations and 
services. 
 
The Strategy had been built on the progress made in the preceding IT Strategic Plan 
(2017-2020). 
 
It was moved by Councillor Barlow and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To agree the Strategy and the timeline for the delivery of the Digital and 
ICT Strategic Programme up to the vesting date for the new Unitary Authority. 
 
97 – Information Security Policy and Acceptable Use of Information Assets 

Policy Update 
 
The Interim Corporate Support Manager reported that the Information Security System 
documentation set and associated management processes had been addressed to 
remediate the restricted assurance reported in the Internal Audit Final Report IT 75 
Information Technology Procedures Review. 
 
Most of the remediation for the two major issues and four of the important issues, had 
been the updating and completion of the Information Security System documentation 
and the implementation of versioning and review practice, which had been overseen 
by IT Services Management. 
 
The completion of the two major issues remediation required approval of the updated 
Information Security Policy and Acceptable Use of Information Assets Policy by this 
Committee. 
 
The final important issue had been remediated using the Bob’s Business Learning 
Portal and the publishing of an updated documentation set on the intranet. 
 
A Member asked that the MTWG look at undertake a training session for Members on 
IT Security. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Morgan and seconded by Councillor Burns, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To approve the Information Security Policy and the Acceptable Use of 
Information Assets Policy. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



98 – Outside Bodies – Police and Crime Panel Appointment 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer reported that following a 
request from Councillor Callister to stand down as a representative on the Police and 
Crime Panel the Committee were asked to consider a new appointment to the Panel. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Burns  and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and  
 

RESOLVED:- To agree to appoint Councillor Hamilton to the Cumbria Police and 
Crime Panel to be effective from 16 December 2021. 
 
99 – Exempt Minute 
 
The Exempt Minute from the Extraordinary meeting held on 30th November, 2021 was 
agreed as a correct record. 
 
100 – Solar PV Development 
 
The Property Services Group Manager provided a brief overview of the potential for 
solar PV generation and recommended further investigations being made into the 
feasibility of this. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Burns, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To delegate approval to the Director of People and Place to enter into 
an agreement as detailed within the Part Two report. 
 
101 – New Digital Platform 
 

The Operations Manager - Housing reported that a key enabler for the delivery of the 
Customer Services Strategy (2021-2025) was the provision of an effective digital 
platform, that supported the guiding principles of Develop use of digital channels and 
Empower customers to self-serve. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To approve the procurement of a New Digital Platform and the implementation 

Plan, as detailed within the Part Two report; and 
 
2. To allocate a budgetary provision for Year 1 implementation and subscription 

costs and Year 2 subscription cost. 
 
The meeting closed at 2.52 pm. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee 

Wednesday 12 January 2021 

Grounds Maintenance Contract – Housing Service 

 
 

Report from:   Jan Sharp, Deputy Director of People & Place 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff, Head of People & Communities 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 Barrow Borough Council’s Grounds Maintenance Contract for the Housing 

Service is due for renewal.  The current contract has been reviewed; there is a 

need to review the solutions available to improve the contract. 

1.2 Barrow Borough Council has over 2,600 residential properties in the borough.  

We are looking for support to find a suitable contractor which can deliver the 

Grounds Maintenance Contract. 

1.3 The Communities and Housing Investment Consortium (CHIC) is a not for profit, 

member-owned consortium that secures efficiencies and savings.  CHIC 

provides procurement compliance contract and commercial support.  

1.4 The route to market must be OJEU compliant and satisfy Barrow Borough 
Council’s internal procurement policy.  Our procurement officer has confirmed 
the service CHIC offers is in line with the requirements of our internal 
procurement policy. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

 

(1) Note the contents of the report  

(2) Agree and delegate authority to the Deputy Director of People and 
Place to work with CHIC to procure and formally award a new Grounds 
Maintenance Contract for the Housing Service. 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  Barrow Borough Council’s Grounds Maintenance Contract for Council Housing is 

in need of renewal.  CHIC has been recommended to the Council by our district 

colleagues.  CHIC is a not-for-profit member-owned consortium that secures 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



efficiencies and savings.  CHIC provides procurement compliance contract and 

commercial support which all deliver efficiencies for members. 

3.2 CHIC Services include a suite of compliant routes to market, including both 

frameworks and dynamic purchasing systems (DPS). 

3.3 There are three procurement routes:  

 Framework/Mini Competition 

 Direct Award 

 Dynamic Purchasing Systems (DPS) 

3.4 After initial discussion with CHIC, their proposed solution to meet our processes 

and requirements would be the DPS Solution.  The advantages to this solution 

are: 

 Drives best value and accurate pricing. 

 Ensures the market is compared and framework pricing is competitive. 

 Allows bespoke pricing, taking into account our brief and exact contract 
requirement. 

 The  Council can be involved in a mini competition if preferred in order that 
we can decide the correct pricing model for the scheme, ensuring the brief is 
understood by the contractors and contractor  pricing is accurate. 

 Small and local contractors can be invited to the DPS and mini competition. 

 Current incumbent contractor can be invited to the DPS and mini 

competition. 

3.5 The DPS Solution involves a mini competition; the timescale for this can be up to 

12 weeks.  CHIC procurement team can create tender documentation to meet 

our requirements which will help manage the contractor through the life of the 

contract. 

3.6 The full procurement process and managed service attracts a fee of 4% - please 
note this is not collected from Barrow Borough Council.  The contract fee is 
included within the contractor pricing and is recovered from them by CHIC on a 
monthly basis. 

 
4.0 Consultation  

 The Council’s Procurement Team have been consulted with information within 

the report and are satisfied it meets with our internal procurement procedures. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Status Quo - this is not recommended as the Grounds Maintenance Contract for 
Housing Service is due for renewal.  The Council will not achieve its corporate 
objectives within the Council Plan and Growing Forward report to improve our 
customer services and efficiencies. 

 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1      Links to the Council Plan 2020–2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 
Values: For our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.  We will 
achieve this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at the heart of 
all we do.  It will serve the needs of the Council Plan, our Values and 
Behaviours, the Growing Forward Report . 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1  Financial, Resources and Procurement  

 The Grounds Maintenance Contract – Housing Service is due for renewal in line 

with our procurement policies and procedures.  The Contract will be financed 

from the existing budget within HRA. 

 

7.2  Legal  

7.2.1 S.111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 
anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary functions.  

 

7.3  Equality and Diversity  

7.3.1 The Council’s approach to equalities  is fundamental to meet our public sector 

equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek out an understanding of our 

customers’ needs, shaping our services to meet the needs of people with 

protected characteristics and incorporating this into our overall service design. 

7.3.2 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the contract; this will 

inform its delivery. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The current 

Grounds 

Maintenance 

Contract is 

due for 

renewal. 

A new contract will enable BBC to review the solutions 

available to them to improve contract delivery and 

contractor performance and best value for money. 

Without a review and procurement of a new contract 

the Council will not achieve its corporate objectives 

within the Council Plan and Growing Forward report to 

improve our customer services and efficiencies. 

CHIC will provide 

procurement 

compliance and 

deliver efficiencies 

and best value for 

money. 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Report Author:   Caroline Wagstaff, Head of People & Communities  

email: cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk  
 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8

mailto:cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

12 January 2022 

The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking 

Places) Order 2022 
 

 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr/Rebecca Halton 

Wards:    Central; Dalton North; Hindpool; Walney North; Walney South; 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Following the consultation process, to consider making the Council of the 

Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2022 (“TRO 

2022”) as detailed within the report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

  

(1) Approve the revised Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking 

Places) Order 2022 and delegate authority to the Director of People and 

Place to finalise and make the Order as detailed within the report and 

give appropriate notice pursuant to the Road Traffic Act 1984 to take 

effect from 1 April 2022. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 At its meeting on 10 November 2021, Executive Committee agreed to consult on 

a revised Traffic Regulation Order as detailed within that report which is attached 

as appendix 1. 

 

3.2 The consultation has now taken place with the general public and stakeholder 

organisations.  The closing date for receipt of responses was 17 December 

2021. 

 

3.2 No responses were received from the general public or stakeholder consultation.    

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



3.3 Following the consultation period it is proposed that the Order requires no 

amendments pending the Barrow Local Committee approval at their 17 January 

meeting.  

 

3.4 Executive Committee is asked to approve the making of the Order and delegate 

to the Director of People and Place authority to finalise and make the Order 

following the Barrow Local Committee meeting and give appropriate notice 

pursuant to the Road Traffic Act 1984 to take effect from 1 April 2022. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Consultation has been undertaken with the stakeholder organisations including 

Cumbria Police and Fire Service along with the County Council Highways 

Department. An Order of Proposal was also placed in the local newspaper and 

on the Council’s website. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not to make the new Order.  This would mean the Council would be unable to 

regulate and protect the use of EV charge points or the use of the specific motor 

home spaces. 
 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Priority 2 – Place, Outcome: Our environment is enhanced, protected and 

celebrated.  Action; Deliver our Climate Emergency Action Plan.  By including EV 

specific spaces, protected by the adoption of the contravention code 71, this will 

encourage and give confidence to residents and visitors to use Electric Vehicles 

thus contributing to the goal of being carbon neutral by 2037. 

Outcome: Our Borough is seen as a destination of choice for leisure, culture and 

sport.  Action; Develop tourism by providing greater access to information and 

develop the Visit Barrow brand.  By introducing and protecting, within the order, 

motorhome specific spaces, this will help encourage visitors to the Borough. 

 Outcome: Improvement to infrastructure designed to achieve the safe and 
convenient movement of vehicles and pedestrians to and within the town centre.  
An up to date TRO will ensure the Council can manage car parks for all road 
users, including pedestrians to improve road safety and access to facilities 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The officer resource required to manage the Electric Vehicles project is to be met 

from existing resources and partly funded by the Low Carbon Barrow scheme. 

7.1.2 The works and services will be procured in compliance with the Council’s rules. 

7.1.3 The EV costs are contained in the Low Carbon Barrow scheme and programme 

funding.  However, there is a small outlay for items that are outside the project 

and associated with the ending of the lease – signage updates and tariff 

changes, and the removal of pay and display machines from Portland Walk Level 

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



A.  These costs are estimated to be less then £2,000 and can be met from 

existing budgets. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 The Council must follow the correct statutory procedure in order to lawfully make 

any changes to the existing rules on parking and enforcement to off-street 

parking spaces it controls within the Borough. Those applicable procedures are 

contained within the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and the Traffic 

Management Act 2004 both of which have been adopted within the process 

contained within this report. A failure to adopt the correct procedure would result 

in none of the proposed changes being capable of lawful implementation or 

enforcement.  

 

7.3.0 Equality and Diversity  

7.3.1 Equality Impact Assessment completed – Yes see report to Executive 
Committee of 10 November 2021 

 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Order not made  Consequence  

EV spaces 

unenforceable  

EV drivers unable to 

charge their vehicle 

Reputational damage to 

Council 

 

. Make Order  

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Order not properly made Unable to enforce 

legally  

Penalty Charge Notices 

issued incorrectly 

therefore not 

enforceable 

Reputational damage to 

the Council 

Follow TRO making 

process 

 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Rebecca Halton- Head of Business Support rhalton@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Debbie Storr- Head of Legal and Governance dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



Appendices Attached to this Report  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking) Order 2022 

2  Report to Executive Committee – 10 November 2021 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

2 

Add links where possible 

  

 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



 1  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 BARROW-IN-FURNESS BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 

The Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness  
(Off-Street Parking Places) Order 2022 

 
 
  

Page 17

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 2 

 
  

The COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS  
(OFF STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER 2018   

 
The Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (hereinafter called “the Council”) in 
exercise of its powers under Sections 32(1), 33(1,2,3) and (7), 34, 35, 35A, and 35C and 
39 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“the 1984 Act”) and Part III of Schedule 9 of 
the said Act of 1984 and in exercise of its powers under Part 6 of the Traffic Management 
Act 2004 (“The 2004 Act”) and all other enabling powers, with the consent of Cumbria 
County Council in accordance with Section 39(3) of the 1984 Act and after consulting with 
the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with paragraph 20 of Schedule 9 to the 1984 Act 
hereby make the following Order. 
 
Definitions and Interpretation 
 
1. In this Order unless stated or the context requires otherwise: 

 
  “The Act” means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 

 
  “Civil Enforcement Officer” has the meaning given in Section 76 of the 

Traffic Management Act 2004. 
 

  “Coach” means a public service Vehicle within the meaning of Section 1 of 
the Public Passenger Vehicles Act, 1981. 
 
“Contact Permit” see Season Ticket below 
 

  “Council” means The Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness  
 

  “Daily Charge” means the charge imposed by the Council for parking in a 
Parking Place on any one day and for a specified period of time as is 
identified in the scale of charges specified by notice in the Parking Place; 
and listed in Schedule 4. 
 

  “Disabled Person’s Badge” has the meaning given in the Disabled 
Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2000, SI 
2000/682 (“the 2000 Regulations”) as amended. 
 

  “Driver” in relation to a Vehicle waiting in a Parking Place means the 
person who was driving the Vehicle at the time it entered in the Parking 
Place or in the case of a trailer means the person who was driving the 
Vehicle which towed the trailer into the Parking Place at the time it entered 
the Parking Place. 
 
“Electric Vehicles” include any vehicle which can be charged via 
connection to an Electric Vehicle Charging Unit.  For example fully electric 
vehicles or plug in hybrid vehicles. 
 
“Electric Vehicle Charging Place” means a parking bay specifically for 
the use for charging an electric vehicle and is designated as much by 
different coloured bay markings or signage. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
 
 
 

   
  “Higher Level Contravention” has the meaning given in the Civil 

Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (Guidelines on Levels of Charges) 
(England) Order 2007 (SI 2007/3487).  
 

  “Lower Level Contravention” has the meaning given in the Civil 
Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (Guidelines on Levels of Charges) 
(England) Order 2007 (SI 2007/3487). 
 

  “Motor Cycle” has the meaning given in Section 136(4) of the Act. 
 

  “Motor Vehicle” has the meaning given in Section 136(1) of the Act. 
 

  “Owner”, in relation to a Vehicle, has the same meaning as in the Act.  
 

  “Paid Early” means the Penalty Charge discounted by 50% when paid 
within 14 days from the date on which the Penalty Charge was issued. 
 

  “Parking Bay” means any area of a Parking Place which is provided for the 
leaving of a Vehicle and indicated by markings on the surface of the 
Parking Place. 
 

  “Parking Dispensation Permit” means a Permit issued pursuant to 
paragraph 48 of this Order for the parking of a specified Vehicle in a 
specified Parking Place for a specified date or dates. 
 

  “Parking Place” means any area of land specified by name in column 1 of 
the Schedule 3 of this Order, which are provided by the Council under 
Section 32(1) of the Act for use as a Parking Place. 
 

  “Parking Device” has the meaning given in Section 35(3B) of the Act. 
 

  “Pay and Display Ticket” means a valid ticket purchased from a Ticket 
Machine installed in the Parking Place in which the Vehicle has been 
parked. 
 

  “Penalty Charge” is the Band 2 level of charge and means a charge 
imposed for contravening the parking regulations of this Order and is set 
out in Part III and has the same meaning as in the Civil Enforcement of 
Parking Contraventions (England) General Regulations 2007,  
SI 2007/3483 as amended. 
 

  “Penalty Charge Notice” has the same meaning as in the Civil 
Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (England) General Regulations 
2007 SI 2007/3483 as amended. 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 4 

 
  

  “Permit” means a Permit issued pursuant to paragraphs 45 to 52 of this 
Order for the parking of a specified Vehicle in a specified Parking Place for 
a specified date, dates or period. 
 

  “Registered Keeper” in relation to a vehicle means the person in whose 
name the vehicle is registered on the Relevant Date under the Vehicle 
Excise and Registration Act 1994 
 

  “Relevant Date” means the date on which the contravention or non 
compliance with the provisions of this Order occurred.  
 

  “Relevant Position” means: 
 

  a) in the case of a Disabled Person’s Badge and clock: 
 

   i) in the case of a Vehicle fitted with a front windscreen, the badge 
and clock are exhibited on the dashboard or fascia of the 
Vehicle so that the front of the badge and clock are facing  
forwards and the date, time of arrival and time of expiry and 
other details confirming the validity thereof are clearly legible 
from the outside of the Vehicle. 
 

   ii) in the case of a Vehicle not fitted with a front windscreen, the 
badge and clock  are exhibited in a conspicuous position so that  
the front of the badge and clock as described above, are clearly 
legible from outside the Vehicle. 
 

  b) in the case of any other badge, Permit, ticket or other parking device 
mentioned in this Order: 
 

   i) in the case of a Vehicle fitted with a front windscreen, the said 
badge, Permit, prepaid ticket or other Parking Device are 
exhibited on the dashboard or fascia of the Vehicle with the 
front of the badge, Permit, prepaid ticket or other device, facing 
forwards so that the date, time of arrival and time of expiry, 
amount paid and other details confirming the validity thereof are 
clearly legible from outside the Vehicle, or 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 ii) in the case of a Vehicle not fitted with a front windscreen, the 
said badge, Permit, prepaid ticket or other Parking Device are 
exhibited in a conspicuous position on the front of the Vehicle or 
as far as possible towards the front of the Vehicle on the near 
side of the Vehicle so that the date, time of arrival and time of 
expiry, amount paid and other details confirming the validity 
thereof are clearly legible from outside the Vehicle. 

   
  “Restricted Hours” means any period specified in column 4 of Schedules 

3 in respect of which the relevant badge, Permit, pay and display ticket or 
other Parking Device is required to be displayed. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 5 

 
  

   
  “Season Ticket” and “Contract Permit” mean a numbered Permit issued 

pursuant to paragraph 45 for the parking of a specified Vehicle or Vehicles 
in a specified Parking Place. 

   
  “Ticket Machine” means an apparatus as described in Section 35(3) of the 

Act for the purpose of the Parking Places specified in the Schedules, being 
apparatus designed to indicate the time by a clock and to issue tickets 
indicating the payment of a charge if applicable and the day and time at 
which the charge was paid; 
 

  “Trailer” means a trailer within the meaning of Section 136(1) of the Act 
and shall not include a caravan. 
 

  
 
 
 

“Vehicle” means any one of the specified classes of Vehicle defined in 
paragraph 12 and Schedule 1 of this Order. 
 

   
 1.1 Any reference to a condition, clause, schedule, paragraph or plan is to one 

detailed in this Order or attached to this Order. 
 

 1.2 In the absence of contrary provision, any reference to a statute, statutory 
provision or statutory instrument shall be construed as reference to that 
statute, statutory provision or statutory instrument as from time to time 
amended, modified, extended, replaced or re-enacted. 
 

 1.3 Unless the context otherwise requires words denoting the singular shall 
include the plural and vice versa and words denoting a person shall include 
either gender, bodies corporate, unincorporated associations and 
partnerships and all other legal entities. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1.4 The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply in the interpretation of this Order. 
 

Commencement and Revocations 
 
2. This Order shall come into operation on 1st April 2022 and may be cited as The 

Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off-Street Parking Places) Order 
2022 

 
3. The following Orders are hereby revoked: 

 
 .  
 a. The Barrow Borough Council (Off-Street Parking Places) Order 2018  
 .  
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 6 

 
  

 
Provision and Use of Parking Places 
 
4. Each of the areas of land specified by name in Column 1 of Schedule 3 to this 

Order may be used, as a Parking Place for such Vehicles or classes of Vehicles, in 
such positions, for such period, on such days and during such hours, as are 
specified in relation to that Parking Place in columns 2, 3 and 4 of Schedule 3 and 
in accordance with the terms of this Order. 

 
5. Where in Columns 2 to 4 of Schedule 3 a Parking Place is described as having 

been provided for Vehicles of a specified class or in a specified position or during a 
specified period (including any provisions specifying particular positions or periods 
for specific classes of Vehicle), the Driver of a Vehicle shall not permit it to wait in 
that Parking Place otherwise than in accordance with such provisions. 

 
6. Where, within a Parking Place, there are surface markings which indicate Parking 

Bays, the Driver of a Vehicle shall not permit it to wait otherwise than wholly within 
such a Parking Bay, except in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 42 and 
the Council may at any time change the location or number of such Parking Bays 
within a Parking Place. 

 
7 Where specified Columns 2 to 4 of Schedule 3, a Parking Place is described as 

available on specified days, during specified hours or for a maximum period of 
stay, no person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to park in that Parking Place on any 
day, during such hours or for any period other or longer than those specified in this 
Order. 

 
8 Where by notice in the Parking Place and as specified in Columns 2 to 4 of 

Schedule 3 a Parking Place is described as having a period within which a Vehicle 
may not return, no person shall cause or permit the Vehicle to wait again in that 
Parking Place until the expiry of that specified period. 

 
9. Where, within a Parking Place, there are roadways and other areas which are not 

available for the parking of Vehicles, the Driver of a Vehicle shall not permit it to 
wait or park at any location other than wholly within a marked Parking Bay specific 
to that class of Vehicle, except in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 42. 

 
10. No person shall cause or permit any Vehicle to park in such part of a Parking Place 

as is marked by signs, lines, studs or other indications so as to indicate its 
provision as a parking bay for: 
 

 a) a disabled persons Vehicle, unless there is displayed on the Vehicle in the 
Relevant Position a disabled person badge and clock in accordance with 
the provisions of the Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) 
(England) Regulations 2000 and the registered disabled person is either 
the Driver or a passenger in the Vehicle, 
 

 b) motorcycles, 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 7 

 
  

 c) Permit holders only bay 
   
   
   
11. Nothing in this Order shall restrict the power of the Council to close any Parking 

Place or any part thereof when such Parking Place or part thereof is required for 
any purpose of the Council or any purpose authorised by the Council. 

 
12. In this paragraph, “specified classes” means the following classes of Vehicle: 

 

 a) Motor Vehicles and Trailers as defined within the provisions of Section 136 
of the Act  
 

 b) Motor Cycles as defined in Section 136(4) of the Act  
 

 c) invalid carriages as defined on Section 136 of the Act 
 

 d) disabled person’s Vehicles. 
 

 and specified classes shall be construed accordingly. 
 
 

Use of Parking Place 
 
13. Any Vehicle using or remaining in any Parking Place shall be at the Registered 

Keeper or Owner’s or Driver’s risk and the Council, its agents, officers or 
employees shall not be liable for loss or damage caused to it or to its contents or 
accessories howsoever arising. 

 
14. The time shown as the arrival time or departure time on any Parking Device, Permit 

or Pay and Display Ticket displayed in or on a Vehicle in Parking Place shall 
constitute conclusive evidence of the time the Vehicle was parked in the Parking 
Place or the time by which the Vehicle was required to leave the Parking Place 
respectively. 

 
15. The Driver of a Motor Vehicle using a Parking Place shall stop the engine as soon 

as the Vehicle is in a position in the Parking Place in which a Vehicle may wait in 
accordance with the provisions of this Order, and shall not start the engine except 
when about to change the position of the Vehicle in, or to depart from, the Parking 
Place. 

 
16. No Vehicle shall park in a Parking Place in such a way as to cause an obstruction 

to others. 

 
17. No Vehicle shall be sold, offered or exhibited for sale while it is in a Parking Place. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 8 

 
  

18. No person shall use a Vehicle, while it is in a Parking Place, in connection with the 
sale of any article to persons in or near the Parking Place or in connection with the 
selling or offering for hire of his skill or services without the prior written consent of 
the Council. 

 
19. No person shall drive a Vehicle into or in a Parking Place unless:- 

 
 a) he is the holder of a licence authorising him to drive a Motor Vehicle of its 

class or description on a road, or 
 

 b) he is the holder of a provisional licence and is accompanied in that Vehicle 
by a person holding a licence of the type mentioned in paragraph 19(a) 
above. 

 
20. The Driver of the Vehicle shall not permit that Vehicle to park in a Parking Place 

unless the Vehicle is licensed in accordance with the provisions of Section 1 of the 
Vehicles Excise and Registration Act 1994 and unless there is in relation to the use 
of the Vehicle by the Driver such a policy of insurance as complies with the 
requirements of the Road Traffic Act 1988, as amended. 

 
21. No person, without the written permission of the Council, shall use any part of a 

Parking Place or any Vehicle parked in a Parking Place: 
 

 a) for recreation or sleeping or camping or cooking, or 
 

 b) for the purpose of advertising or promoting any cause, event or other 
matter whatsoever or for the distribution of leaflets or other materials, or 
 

 c) for the erection of any tent, booth, stand, building or other structure, or 
 

 d) for the playing of ball games, or 
 

 e) for roller-skating, skate boarding, go-karting, the use of mini-motorbikes, or 
 

 f) for the purpose of operating radio controlled machines, or 
 

 g) for the purpose of servicing, maintaining, repairing or washing any Vehicle 
or any part thereof other than so far as is reasonably necessary to enable 
that Vehicle to depart from the Parking Place, or 
 

 h) to play or cause or permit to be played any radio, cassette, compact disc, 
instrument or similar item in such manner as may become a nuisance to 
other users of the Parking Place or to the owners or occupiers of properties 
adjoining the Parking Place, or 
 

 i) for any other purpose other than the designated purpose of the Parking 
Place. 
 

22. In a Parking Place no person shall:- 
 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 9 

 
  

 a) light or cause or permit to be lit any fire; 
 

 b) fill any Vehicle or container with petrol, diesel, oil or other form of fuel or 
inflammable liquid other than so far as is reasonably necessary to enable 
that Vehicle to depart from the Parking Place. 
 

 c) soil or defile, remove, displace or damage any part of the Parking Space or 
wall or fence in or enclosing the Parking Place or any building, barrier, 
post, notice, sign, railing or other erection therein; 
 

 d) throw down, drop or otherwise deposit in any Parking Place any item or 
article of rubbish or waste material so as to contribute to or tend to lead to 
the defacement of that Parking Place by litter. 

 
23. No person in a Vehicle using a Parking Place shall sound any horn or other similar 

instrument except when about to change position of a Vehicle in or depart from the 
Parking Place. 

 
24. Save as provided in this Order no persons shall, except with the permission of a 

person authorised by the Council in that behalf, drive or permit to be driven any 
Vehicle in a Parking Place for any purposes other than the purpose of leaving that 
Vehicle in the Parking Place in accordance with the provisions of this Order or for 
the purpose of departing from the Parking Place. 

 
25. No person shall except with the permission of any person authorised by the 

Council drive any Vehicle into a Parking Place when there is exhibited at the 
entrance to that Parking Place a notice indicating that the Parking Place is full. 
 

Supermarket Trolleys 
 
26. No person shall leave any trolley, basket on wheels or other similar receptacle 

designed for the carrying of merchandise in such a position in any Parking Place so 
as to cause an obstruction nuisance or annoyance to other users of the Parking 
Place but shall ensure that such trolleys, baskets on wheels or receptacles are 
returned to the premises of the owners of such trolleys, baskets on wheels or 
receptacles or to such collection points in the Parking Place as may be provided by 
the said owners or by the Council. 
 

Nuisance 
 
27. No person shall do anything to interfere with the use or enjoyment of any Parking 

Place by other users of the Parking Place. 

 
28. No person shall in any Parking Place use any threatening, abusive or insulting 

language, gesture or conduct with intent to put any person in fear or so as to 
occasion a breach of the peace or whereby a breach of the peace is likely to be 
occasioned. 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
10 

 
  

29. No person shall use or permit to be used in a Parking Place a Vehicle dangerously, 
carelessly or in an inconsiderate manner or in such a way as to cause any 
excessive noise which could have been avoided by the exercise of reasonable care 
on the part of the Driver. 
 

Right of Way 
 
30. No person shall use a Parking Place as a means of passage or of proceeding from 

one road to another road. 

 
31. Save as provided in this Order the right of passage within a Parking Place provided 

by the Council is available to a person driving or being conveyed in Motor Vehicles 
and does not extend to pedestrians other than the Drivers of Vehicles and their 
passengers leaving or returning to their Vehicles and no rights of way whatsoever 
over the said Parking Place other than for the purpose of parking or removing 
Vehicles shall be deemed to have been granted by the Council. 

 
32. Nothing in this Order shall render it unlawful for pedestrians or persons driving or 

being conveyed in any Vehicle to exercise the right of passage over a right of way 
formally agreed and approved by the Council over any Parking Place provided by 
the Council. 
 
 

Action After Accident 
 
33. If in any case owing to the presence of a Vehicle in a Parking Place an accident 

occurs whereby personal injury is caused to a person other than the Driver of that 
Vehicle or damage is caused to a Vehicle other than that Vehicle or to any other 
property whatsoever, including the Parking Place, the Driver of the Vehicle shall 
stop if required to do so by a person authorised by the Council in that behalf or any 
other person having reasonable grounds for so requiring giving his or her name 
and address and also name and address of the owner and the identification marks 
of the Vehicle and his or her certificate of insurance. 
 

Cycling 
 
34. No person shall ride or cause to be ridden any pedal-cycle or tricycle in any 

Parking Place other than so far as is reasonably necessary to enable that cycle or 
tricycle to park in or depart from the Parking Place 
 

Direction of Travel 
 
35. Where in a Parking Place signs are erected or surface markings are laid for the 

purpose of: 
 

 a) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place; or 
 

 b) indicating that a Vehicle using the Parking Place shall proceed in a 
specified direction within the Parking Place, 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
11 

 
  

 no person shall drive or permit to be driven any Vehicle: 
 

 a) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an entrance, or leaves 
the Parking Place otherwise than by an exit, so indicated, or 
 

 b) in a direction other than so specified except by express prior written 
agreement with the Council for the purpose of gaining access to or from or 
of loading or unloading goods or passengers at any premises adjoining the 
Parking Place. 

 
36. No person shall, except with the permission of a person authorised by the Council 

in that behalf, drive or permit to be driven any Vehicle in a Parking Place for any 
purpose other than the purpose of leaving that Vehicle in that Parking Place in 
accordance with the provisions of this Order or for the purpose of departing from 
the Parking Place. 
 

 
Charges for Parking. 
 
37. Whenever a Vehicle occupies any Parking Place specified in this Order during the 

Restricted Hours, as specified in Column 4 of Schedule 3, the Driver of the Vehicle 
shall pay such Daily Charge as is specified in Column 5 of Schedule 3, or other 
subsequent Notice of Variation of Charges as attached to this Order, or shall 
display such  Permit,  Pay and Display Ticket, badge or other Parking Device as is 
specified and in such manner as provided in this Order and shall comply with any 
other provisions of this Order. 

 
38. Outside the Restricted Hours, specified in Column 4 of Schedule 3, the classes of 

Vehicle specified may park in the Parking Place free of charge but subject to the 
other provisions of this Order. 

 
39. Where the Daily Charge is payable in relation to the parking of a Vehicle it shall be 

paid by obtaining a Pay and Display Ticket by the insertion of an appropriate coin, 
coins, or notes into the Ticket Machine. Alternatively the parking Daily Charge may 
be made by credit card or debit card by way of mobile telephone communication to 
the Council’s agent.  In such circumstances there is no requirement to display a 
ticket or receipt showing proof of payment of the Daily Charge. 
 
(a) Where payment of the Daily Charge is made by credit card or debit card by way 
of  mobile telephone communication the payee shall disclose the; 
 
(i) call number of the mobile telephone 
 
(ii) identification number and any such other detail as may be requested by or 
on behalf of the Council relating to the credit card or debit card against which the 
Daily Charge is being paid. 
 
(iii) location number of the Parking Place in respect of which payment is being 
made 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
12 

 
  

(iv) registration number of the motor vehicle being parked 
 
(b) Where payment of a Daily Charge is made by credit card or debit card by 
mobile phone 
 
(i) The transaction fee shall be payable at the time 
(ii) The parking period shall commence on receipt by the Council of the details 
specified in paragraph 39(a) 
 
(c) At any time after a Daily Charge has been paid in accordance with the 
preceding paragraphs of this paragraph in respect of a parking period that parking 
period may be increased on further payment of the additional Daily Charge and the 
appropriate transaction fee paid always provided that the maximum permitted 
parking period for that parking place is not exceeded. 
 
(d) The payee of a Daily Charge in accordance with the preceding paragraphs of 
this paragraph may request to be informed by a text message as to the imminent 
expiry of the parking period provided that where such text message is sent the 
appropriate transaction fee as advertised at each site has been paid. 
 
(e) The Council shall display a notice in every car park where the option of 
payment of the Daily Charge by credit or debit card is available, such Notice shall 
display the location number of the car park in which it is sited and provide 
operational guidance on the payment of the Daily Charge. 

 
40. If a Pay and Display Ticket is required it shall be purchased immediately following 

the parking of the Vehicle in the said Parking Place in respect of the period, during 
which the Vehicle is intended to be parked in that Parking Place and such Pay and 
Display Ticket shall be displayed in the Relevant Position throughout the said 
period.   

 
41. Where the parking of a Vehicle in any Parking Place is authorised by a Pay and 

Display Ticket under the provisions of paragraphs 39 and 40, such Vehicles shall 
not be left in the Parking Place for longer than the period permitted by the Pay and 
Display Ticket. 

 
42. Where a Vehicle occupies more than one Parking Bay where the parking of a 

Vehicle is authorised by a Pay and Display Ticket under the provisions of 
paragraphs 39 and 40, such a Vehicle shall display a Pay and Display Ticket for 
each Parking Bay wholly or partly occupied for the appropriate length of stay of that 
Vehicle, and will be exempt of the requirement to park wholly within a marked bay 
as specified in paragraphs 6 and 9 and column 2 of Schedule 3 to this Order.  
 

43. A Vehicle displaying Pay and Display Tickets for different lengths of stay in 
accordance with paragraph 42 will be subject to the time restriction displayed on 
the Pay and Display Ticket due to expire first. 

 
44. A disabled person’s Vehicle which displays in the Relevant Position a valid 

disabled person’s blue badge and clock and left in a parking bay in accordance 

Page 28

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
13 

 
  

with Column 2 and 4 of Schedule 3, provided that the Vehicle immediately before 
or after the act of parking has been used or is about to be used by the person in 
respect of whom the badge is issued, shall be exempt from the payment of the 
Daily Charge for a period not exceeding three hours (no return within 2 hours) in 
any one Parking Space. 
 

The Daily Charge shall be payable in respect of a Vehicle displaying a permit 
issued by the Council not parked in a parking bay specifically marked for the 
permit. 

   

   
Season Ticket/Contract Permit   
 
45. The owner of a motor Vehicle may, at the discretion of the Council, purchase a 

Contract Permit or Season Ticket in respect of that Vehicle or Vehicles for the 
charge and for the use in the Parking Place specified in Schedule 4 and subject to 
conditions as determined from time to time by the Council and that Contract Permit 
or Season Ticket shall be valid in relation to such Vehicle or Vehicles for such 
period and in such Parking Place as is specified thereon. 

 
  
Other Permits 
 
46. At the discretion of the Council, a Visitor Parking Permit may be issued as a 

substitute for a Pay and Display Ticket. The permit must be validated by showing 
the Vehicle Registration Details and the date of use and such permit shall be 
displayed in the Relevant Position throughout the permitted period. 

  

  
47. Employees of the Council, and such other persons as the Council may think fit, 

may at the discretion of the Council be given a permit for the parking of a specified 
Vehicle in a specified Parking Place or places, subject to such conditions, as 
determined from time to time by the Council. 

  
48. Parking dispensation permits, will be issued at the discretion of the Council at such 

charge as determined by the Council, to enable appropriate works to be carried 
out, to promote functions of the Council and any relevant partner as it is seen fit, 
subject to such conditions, as determined from time to time by the Council. 

 
49. Any Permit issued pursuant to paragraphs 45 to 52 shall be displayed in the 

Relevant Position throughout the period during which the Vehicle is parked in the 
Parking Place. 

 
50. Any  Pay and Display Ticket or Permit (with the exception of Contract Permits and 

Season Tickets) issued pursuant to paragraphs 40 to 49 shall: 
 

 be non-transferable between the Vehicle or Vehicles in respect of which it 
was issued and any other Vehicles unless specifically stated to the contrary,  
and 

 be valid only in the Parking Place and for the date or dates and times 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
14 

 
  

specified; 
 be valid only if used in accordance with such conditions attached to the 

permit  
 

and any improper use of the Permit or ticket or breach of any the conditions 
attached to the Permit shall render the same void. 

 
51. Any Permit, shall at all times remain the property of the Council and shall be 

returned to the Council within seven days after the expiry of the period for which 
they are valid, or upon request by the Council. 
 

Penalty Charges 
 
52. If a Vehicle is parked in a Parking Place without complying with the requirements of 

this Order or any conditions attached to any Permit issued by the Council a 
contravention shall have occurred and a Penalty Charge Notice shall be issued.  
 

53. In the case of a Vehicle in respect of which a Penalty Charge may become 
payable, a Civil Enforcement Officer shall attach to the Vehicle in a conspicuous 
position or give to the person who appears to be in charge of the Vehicle, in 
accordance with the Civil Enforcement of Parking Contravention (England) General 
Regulations 2007 (No.3483), a Penalty Charge Notice which shall include the 
particulars as required by these regulations. 

 
54. A Penalty Charge Notice may be served by first class post in accordance with the 

Civil Enforcement of Parking Contravention (England) General Regulations 2007 
and Civil Enforcement of Parking Contravention (England) Representations and 
Appeals  Regulations 2007  if :  
 

 a) a Civil Enforcement Officer attempted to serve a Penalty Charge Notice in 
accordance with paragraph 53 but was prevented from doing so by some 
person; or 
 

 b) a Civil Enforcement Officer had begun to prepare a Penalty Charge Notice 
for service in accordance with paragraph 53 but the Vehicle concerned was 
driven away from the Parking Place before the Civil Enforcement Officer 
had finished preparing the Penalty Charge Notice. 

 
55. The Penalty Charge shall be paid to the Council within 28 days of the day on which 

the Penalty Charge Notice was served. 

 
56. In the event that the Penalty Charge is paid to the Council within 14 days of the 

date of the Penalty Charge Notice having been served, it shall be treated as being 
Paid Early and a reduced sum shall be accepted in full settlement of the Penalty 
Charge at the discounted rate of 50%. 

 
57. If the Penalty Charge remains unpaid after 56 days from the date the Penalty 

Charge Notice was served and a Charge Certificate is issued, the Penalty Charge 
shall increase by 50%. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
15 

 
  

 
58. When a Penalty Charge Notice has been attached to a Vehicle in accordance with 

any of the foregoing provisions of this Order, no person other than a person 
authorised by the Council in that behalf or the Driver or a person authorised by the 
Driver in that behalf shall remove the notice from the Vehicle. 

 
59. In the case of any contravention in respect of which a Vehicle is in a Parking Place 

and a Penalty Charge is payable, a separate Penalty Charge shall be payable on 
each day that the Vehicle remains in the Parking Place. 

 
60. The Registered Keeper of the Vehicle shall be deemed to be the person  

responsible for any contravention or non-compliance with the provisions of this 
Order and shall be responsible for the payment of  the Penalty Charge unless he 
can show that:  
 

 a) he was neither the Owner nor the Registered  Keeper  nor the Driver of the 
Vehicle on the Relevant Date or 
 

 b) that the Vehicle was being used on the Relevant Date without his consent, 
 

 provided that the Council shall be entitled to recover any charge from and proceed 
against any other person who is shown to the Council’s satisfaction to have been 
the Owner,  Registered Keeper or Driver of the Vehicle on the Relevant Date . 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  Page 
16 

 
  

Given under the Common Seal of Barrow in Furness Borough Council  
this        day of                                 2022 

 
 

THE COMMON SEAL OF BARROW IN FURNESS  
BOROUGH COUNCIL was hereunto affixed  
In the presence of:- 

 
 
 
 

Sam Plum 
Chief  Executive Officer

Page 32

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



  
Page 17 

 
  

SCHEDULE 1 
 

CLASSES OF VEHICLES 
 

CODE CLASS OF VEHICLE 

A Non-motorised vehicles 

B Solo motorcycles 

C Motor car 

D Commercial Vehicles & Heavy Goods 
Vehicles 

E Passenger vehicles adapted to carry 
more than 12 passengers excluding 

the driver 

F Motorhome/Campervan 

 
 
 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 18 

 
  

SCHEDULE 2 
 

CONTRAVENTIONS INCURRING A PENALTY CHARGE 
 

CONTRAVENTION 
CODE 

DESCRIPTION 

71 Parked in an electric vehicles’ charging place within restricted hours without 
charging 

80 Parked for longer than the maximum period permitted 

81 Parked in a restricted Parking Place 

82 Parked after the expiry of time paid for in a pay and display Parking Place 

83 Parked in a Parking Place without clearly displaying a valid Pay and 
Display Ticket 

84 Parked with additional payment made to extend the stay beyond the time 
first purchased 

85 Parked in a Parking Bay without clearly displaying a valid Permit 

86 Parked beyond the Parking Bay markings 

87 Parked in a disabled persons Parking Bay without clearly displaying a 
Disabled Persons Badge 

89 Vehicle parked exceeds maximum weight and/or height permitted in the 
Parking Place 

90 Parked within the no return period after leaving a Parking Bay in a Parking 
Place 

91 Parked in an area not designated for that class of Vehicle 

92 Parked causing an obstruction 

93 Parked in a Parking Place when closed 

 
 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 19 

 
  

SCHEDULE 3 
PARKING PLACES AND CHARGES 

 
 

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Bigger Bank 
Parking Areas 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

Motorhome 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
No overnight stay 
without permission 

No charge 

Channelside 
Haven Car Park 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 3 hours.  
No return within 3 hours. 

 
 

No charge 
 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 20 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Church Street 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Craven House 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Dock Museum 
Visitor Car Park 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 
 

 Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 3 hours.  
No return within 3 hours. 

 
 

No charge 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 21 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Emlyn Street 
(Long Stay) 

Wholly within a parking bay. 
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders. 
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 10 hours 
 

or 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 
 

2 hours free parking for 
vehicles actively 

charging 

Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 4 hours - £3.00 

Up to 10 hours - £6.00 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 22 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Fell Street 
(Short Stay) 

Wholly within a parking bay. 
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 hours 

 
or 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

Grange and 
Cartmel Crescent 
(Contract Only) 
(Residents Only 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

No charge 

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 23 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Hall Street 
(Short Stay) 

Wholly within a parking bay. 
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 
 

Motor Cycles – wholly within 
the dedicated parking bay as 
indicated by a sign or surface 

markings 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 hours 

 
or 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 
 

2 hours free parking for 
vehicles actively 

charging 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

High Street 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 
 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 24 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Holker Street 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Holker Street 
North 

(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 

No charge to contract holders 

Lime Street Car 
Park, Dalton 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
. 
 
 

No charge 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 25 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Market Street 
(Long Stay) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 10 hours 
 

or 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 
 

2 hours free parking for 
vehicles actively 

charging 

Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 4 hours - £3.00 

Up to 10 hours - £6.00 
 

Motor Cycle – no charge 

McClean Close Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 
 

No charge 
 
 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 26 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Nelson Street Car 
Park, Dalton 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 
 

No charge 

Oldham Street A 
(Short Stay) 

Wholly within a parking bay. 
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 
 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 hours 

 
or 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 27 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Oldham Street B 
(Disabled 
Parking) 

Wholly within a parking bay - 
disabled persons as marked 

displaying a disabled persons 
badge and clock set to the 

time of arrival 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 
 

No charge 

Portland Walk 
Level B 

(Short Stay) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 4 hours 

 
 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour - £1.30 

Up to 2 hour   - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 
Up to 4 hours - £4.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

Portland Walk 
Level C 

(Long Stay) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 10 hours 

 
 

Up to 1 hour - £1.30 
Up to 2 hour   - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 
Up to 4 hours - £4.00 

Up to 10 hours - £6.00 
 

Motor Cycle – no charge 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 28 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Ramsden Hall 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Slater Street 1, 2 
& 3 

(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Strand 1 & 2 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place.   
 

Contract holders in spaces 
marked with a letter “C” or 
otherwise indicated as only 

available for contract holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 29 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Town Hall 
Courtyard 
(Disabled 
Parking) 

Wholly within a parking bay - 
displaying a disabled persons 

badge and clock set to the 
time of arrival 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 
 

No charge 

Town Hall 
Courtyard 

(Authorised 
vehicles only) 

Permit holders only or 
otherwise indicated as only 
available for permit holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

No charge 

Tudor Square, 
Dalton 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 2 hours.  

No return within 3 hours. 
 
 

No charge 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 30 

 
  

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which vehicle 

may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & maximum 
period a vehicle may 

stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

West Shore Car 
Park 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on the 

parking place. 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

Motorhome 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
No overnight parking 
without permission 

 

No charge 

Whittaker Street 
(ShortStay) 

Wholly within a parking bay. 
 

Disabled parking - displaying 
a disabled person’s badge 
and clock set to the time of 

arrival. 
 

Electrical vehicle charging 
spaces for the exclusive use 
of electric vehicles only which 

must be actively charging 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 hours 

 
or 
 

3 hours in a designated 
disabled person’s 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 
markings. No return 

within 2 hours. 
 

2 hours free parking for 
vehicles actively 

charging 

Up to 20mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

 

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 31 

 
  

SCHEDULE 4 
SEASON TICKET AND CONTRACT PERMIT CHARGES 

 
 

Contract Car Park Annual Cost 

Craven House £600 plus VAT = £720 

Church Street £600 plus VAT = £720 

Emlyn Street £600 plus VAT = £720 

Hindpool Road £600 plus VAT = £720 

Holker Street £600 plus VAT = £720 

Holker Street (North) £600 plus VAT = £720 

Market Street £600 plus VAT = £720 

Ramsden Hall £600 plus VAT = £720 

Slater Street 1, 2 &3 £600 plus VAT = £720 

Strand 1 & 2 £600 plus VAT = £720 

 

Season Ticket Car Park Annual Cost 

Portland Walk Level C* £600 plus VAT = £720 

Emlyn Street* 
 

*Purchase of a Season Ticket for this type of parking Permit 

does not guarantee a Parking Bay space 

£600 plus VAT = £720 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 32 

 
  

Contract/Season Ticket Bulk Buy Discount 

 
Number of Permits Discount % 

10-19 10% 

20-29 20% 

30+ 30% 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



  
Page 33 

 
  

SCHEDULE 5 
 

PENALTY CHARGE LEVEL  
 

(The Civil Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (Guidelines on Levels of Charges) (England) 
Order 2007 (No. 3487) Band 2 Level of Charge. 

 
 The Penalty Charge shall be - £70.00 in respect of higher level contraventions 

£50.00 in respect of lower level contraventions 
 

 Paid Early - £35.00 in respect of higher level contraventions 
£25.00 in respect of lower level contraventions 

 
 Paid after service of charge certificate. - £105.00 in respect of higher level contraventions 

£75.00 in respect of lower level contraventions 
 

 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 34  
 

 
Page 50

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

10 November 2021 

The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking 

Places) Order 2022 
 

 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Mike Otto 

Wards:    Central; Dalton North; Hindpool; Walney North; 

Walney South; 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  To consider the revision of the Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off 

Street Parking Places) Order 2018 (“TRO 2018”) as detailed within the report. 

1.2 If the proposed revisions are approved then a draft Order will be published for 

consultation. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

  

(1) Approve the revisions to the Off Street Parking Places Order as 

detailed within the report ; 

 

(2) Approve the alteration of tariffs on Portland Walk Car Park to align with 

other car parks: 

 

(3) Authorise Officers to prepare and publish a draft Order under the Road 

Traffic Regulations Act 1984; and 

 

(4) Agree that the necessary consultations be undertaken by Officers in 

accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Local Authorities 

Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 and 

any responses be brought back to Executive Committee after the 

consultation period. 

 

 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Local authorities are empowered to make Orders under the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984. Traffic Regulation Orders allow the Council to enforce 

parking restrictions on Council owned land, including designated off-street car 

parks. 

 

3.2 The current TRO 2018 took effect on 1st April 2018 and has recently been 

reviewed.  The review highlighted that there is a requirement   to now include the 

West Shore Car Park, Bigger Bank Parking Areas, and Nelson Street and Lime 

Street Car Parks in Dalton.  These car parks are not currently included in TRO 

2018 and subsequently the Council are unable to enforce on them.  As part of 

the Low Carbon Barrow project these sites have been selected for the 

installation of Electric Vehicle Charging Points, by including them in the new 

TRO will enable the Council’s Civil Enforcement Officers to ensure the 

designated spaces are used for the correct purpose.  In addition, the Council has 

introduced a small number of motor-home parking spaces, again there is no 

provision in the current Order, so the inclusion would enable the Council to 

enforce should the need arise. 

 

3.3 In addition, it is proposed that the following contravention codes are adopted; 71 

– Parked in an electric vehicles’ charging place during restricted hours without 

charging.  95 – Parked in a parking place for a purpose other than that 

designated. 

 

3.4 Appendix 1 details the proposed restrictions for these areas. 

 Maps identifying the areas referred to in the report are attached as Appendix 2 

 

3.5 As part of the wider Low Carbon Barrow Project, aimed at reducing carbon 

emissions across the Borough,  West Shore Car Park, Nelson Street Car Park 

and Lime Street Car Park have been identified as sites for the installation of 

Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Points, therefore, the inclusion of these areas 

under the TRO 2022 and adoption of contravention code 71 – “Parked in an 

electric vehicles’ place during restricted hours without charging” – will enable 

regulation and control of the spaces designated for EV Charging 

 

3.6 In addition, West Shore Car Park, Bigger Bank parking areas and the have been 

identified and had spaces designated for use by motor-homes.  Inclusion of 

these car parks within TRO 2022 and the adoption of contravention code 95 – 

Parked in a parking place for a purpose other than designated, would allow the 

motor-home spaces to be controlled. 

 

3.7 It is proposed that Hindpool Road Contract Car Park needs to be removed from 

the TRO 2022 as that land is no longer in Council ownership. 

 

3.8 A list of the car parks contained in the draft TRO 2022 is attached at Appendix 3. 

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



3.9 It is recommended that West Shore Car Park, Bigger Bank Parking Areas, 

Nelson Street Car Park and Lime Street Car Park should remain as free car 

parks.  It is also recommended that, should a vehicle be using the EV Charging 

Point on a pay and display car park would get 2 hours free parking.  Beyond that 

time it would be expected that the vehicle be moved. 
 

3.10 It is recommended that, as the Council will no longer operate Portland Walk 

Level A after 14 December 2021, that this area is removed from the Order, and 

in addition, an inclusion of the following charges: 40p for 20mins and £1.30 for 1 

hour – to the existing tariff on levels B and C.  Previously, due to the lease 

agreement with Portland Walk Ltd the minimum stay on the car park was 2 

hours.  This clause will no longer be relevant once Level A is handed back in 

December 
 

4.0 Consultation  

 In making a new Order the Council is required to publish a notice of proposal in 

the local newspaper, consult with the local Highway Authority and serve notice 

on all statutory consultees.  A minimum of 21days is required for consultation 

responses. Any objections received must be given due consideration and 

modifications made if necessary, prior to the Order being made and brought into 

force. 
 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The only other option would be not to make the new Order.  This would mean the 

Council would be unable to regulate and protect the use of EV chargepoints or 

the use of the specific motor home spaces. 
 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1  

• Priority 2 – Place, Outcome: Our environment is enhanced, protected and 

celebrated.  Action; Deliver our Climate Emergency Action Plan.  By including EV 

specific spaces, protected by the adoption of the contravention code 71, this will 

encourage and give confidence to residents and visitors to use Electric Vehicles 

thus contributing to the goal of being carbon neutral by 2037. 

• Outcome: Our Borough is seen as a destination of choice for leisure, culture and 

sport.  Action; Develop tourism by providing greater access to information and 

develop the Visit Barrow brand.  By introducing and protecting, within the order, 

motorhome specific spaces, this will help encourage visitors to the Borough. 

• Outcome: Improvement to infrastructure designed to achieve the safe and 

convenient movement of vehicles and pedestrians to and within the town centre.  

An up to date TRO will ensure the Council’s car parks are properly managed. 
 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The officer resource required to manage the Electric Vehicles project is to be met 

from existing resources and partly funded by the Low Carbon Barrow scheme. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

7.1.2 The works and services will be procured in compliance with the Council’s rules. 

 

7.1.3 The EV costs are contained in the Low Carbon Barrow scheme and programme 

funding.  However, there is a small outlay for items that are outside the project 

and associated with the ending of the lease – signage updates and tariff 

changes, and the removal of pay and display machines from Portland Walk Level 

A.  These costs are estimated to be less then £2,000 and can be met from 

existing budgets. 

 

 

Legal  

7.1.3 The Council is required to follow the statutory process in respect of making the 

relevant Orders and seeks legal advice where required. 

The Council is unable to control and enforce “unauthorised” parking unless the 

area in question is covered by a TRO.   

Due to the proposed inclusion of new areas within the TRO a new order is 

required rather than an amendment. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.1 Equality Impact Assessment completed (attached as appendix 4) 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Order not made  Consequence  

EV spaces 

unenforceable  

EV drivers unable to 

charge their vehicle 

Reputational damage to 

Council 

 

. Make Order  

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Order not properly made Unable to enforce 

legally  

Penalty Charge Notices 

issued incorrectly 

therefore not 

enforceable 

Reputational damage to 

the Council 

Follow TRO making 

process 

 

 

 

Page 54

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Contact Officers  

Mike Otto – mwotto@barrowbc.gov.uk – Car Parks and Admin Services Manager 

 

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Proposed Restrictions 

2  Car Park Maps 

3 List of car parks 

4 Equality Impact Assessment 

5 Current Traffic Regulation Order 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

2 

Add links where possible 

  

Page 55

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

mailto:mwotto@barrowbc.gov.uk


Proposed changes/amendments to existing order 

Existing Car Parks 

Car Park Current Specification/Charging 
Schedule 

Proposed Changes 

Channelside Haven Free 
3hr Max Stay 

None 

Church Street Contract Only None 

Craven House Contract Only None 

Dock Museum Free 
3hr Max Stay 

None 

Emlyn Street Long Stay None 

Fell Street Short Stay None 

Grange and Cartmel Crescent Residents only None 

Hall Street Short Stay None 

High Street Contract Only None 

Hindpool Road Contract Only  Remove – No longer owned by 
Council 

Holker Street Contract Only  None 

Holker Street (North) Contract Only None 

Market Street Long Stay None 

McClean Close Residents Only None 

Oldham Street (A) Short Stay None 

Oldham Street (B) Disabled Only None 

Portland Walk A&B Short Stay Remove level A as lease not 
being renewed 
Change Level B to Long Stay 
Possibly include 20 min and 1 
hour tariff 

Portland Walk C Long Stay None 

Ramsden Hall Contract Only None 

Slater Street 1, 2 & 3 Contract Only  None 

Strand 1 &2  Contract Only None 

Town Hall Courtyard Disabled  Blue Badge holders only None 

Town Hall Courtyard Authorised Vehicles only None 

Whittaker Street Car Park Short Stay None 

 

  

Page 56

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



New Areas to include 

 

Car Parking Area Proposed Specification Rationale 

West Shore Car Park Free 
No Overnight Stay (without 
consent) 
Parked within markings of a 
bay 
Parked in an electric vehicles’ 
charging place during 
restricted hours without 
charging 

 
Campervans 
 
 
EV Charging 

Bigger Bank Parking Areas Free 
No Overnight Stay (without 
consent) 
Parked within the markings of 
a bay 
Parked in a parking place for a 
purpose other than that 
designated 

 
Campervans 
 
 
 
EV Charging 

Amphitheatre Free 
No Overnight Stay 

 
Campervans 

Nelson Street (Dalton) Free 
Parked in an electric vehicles’ 
charging place during 
restricted hours without 
charging 

 
EV Charging 

Lime Street (Dalton) Free 
Parked in an electric vehicles’ 
charging place during 
restricted hours without 
charging 

 
EV Charging 

 

 

Other Considerations; 

Proposal Rationale 

For all car parks under schedule 2 of the Order.  
Adopt Off Street Contraventions  
71 – Parked in an electric vehicles’ charging 
place during restricted hours without charging 
95 – Parked in a parking place for a purpose 
other than that designated.   

With the impending installation of a number of 
Electric Vehicle (EV) Charge points across the 
Borough this would enable us to enforce/issue 
a Penalty Charge Notice (PCN) to any vehicle 
parked in a designated charging place without 
charging. 

  

 

  

Page 57

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Financial Considerations 

Car Park What Quantity Cost 

Portland Walk  
(Level B) 

New information 
board 

1  

Change tariff on 
machine 

1 £447.40 

West Shore New information 
board 

1  

Bigger Bank Parking 
Areas (x4) 

New information 
boards 

8  

Amphitheatre New information 
board 

1  

Nelson St (Dalton) New Information 
board 

1  

Lime St (Dalton) New information 
board 

1  

 

NB – and EV Vehicle signage/bay markings are included in the Low Carbon Barrow funding 

Other Costs 

What Quantity Amount 

Advert in Evening Mail 1 – Notice of Proposal 
1 – Notice of Making 

£207 (price in 2018) 
£405 (price in 2018) 

 

NB – We haven’t had any change to tariffs, either pay and display or contracts since 2013.  However, 
the cost to change the pay and display tariffs on each machine would cost approx £1800 and I think 
this is prohibitive.  I also think to make changes prior to our own internal restructure, LGR and in leiu 
of a Town Centre strategy would not make sense. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 59

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 60

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 61

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 62

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 63

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Appendix 3 
PARKING PLACES AND CHARGES 

 
 

(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Amphitheatre 
Car Park 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

Motorhome 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
No overnight stay 
without permission 

No charge 

Bigger Bank 
Parking Areas 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

Motorhome 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
No overnight stay 
without permission 

No charge 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Channelside 
Haven Car Park 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 3 
hours.  No return 
within 3 hours. 

 
 

No charge 
 

Church Street 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Craven House 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Dock Museum 
Visitor Car Park 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 3 
hours.  No return 
within 3 hours. 

 
 

No charge 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Emlyn Street 
(Long Stay) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay. 

 
Contract holders in 

spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders. 
 

Disabled parking - 
displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 10 
hours 

 
or 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 4 hours - £3.00 
Up to 10 hours - £6.00 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Fell Street 
(Short Stay) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay. 

 
Disabled parking - 

displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 

hours 
 

or 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Grange and 
Cartmel 
Crescent 

(Contract Only) 
(Residents Only 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

No charge 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Hall Street 
(Short Stay) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay. 

 
Disabled parking - 

displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

 
Motor Cycles – wholly 
within the dedicated 

parking bay as indicated 
by a sign or surface 

markings 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 

hours 
 

or 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

High Street 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 
 

Holker Street 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Holker Street 
North 

(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 

No charge to contract 
holders 

Lime Street Car 
Park, Dalton 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
. 
 
 

No charge 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Market Street 
(Long Stay) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 
 

Disabled parking - 
displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

Maximum stay 10 
hours 

 
or 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 4 hours - £3.00 
Up to 10 hours - £6.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

McClean Close Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 
 

No charge 
 
 

Nelson Street 
Car Park, Dalton 
(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 
 
 

No charge 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Oldham Street A 
(Short Stay) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay. 

 
Disabled parking - 

displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 3 

hours 
 

or 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Oldham Street B 
(Disabled 
Parking) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay - disabled persons 
as marked displaying a 
disabled persons badge 
and clock set to the time 

of arrival 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

 

No charge 

Portland Walk 
Level B 

(Short Stay) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Disabled parking - 
displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 4 

hours 
 
 

Up to 20 mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour - £1.30 
Up to 2 hour   - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 
Up to 4 hours - £4.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge Commented [MO1]: Would need to check if we’re 

allowed to introduce these tariffs – previous lease 
precluded anything less than 2 hours 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Portland Walk 
Level C 

(Long Stay) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Disabled parking - 
displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 10 

hours 
 
 

Up to 1 hour - £1.30 
Up to 2 hour   - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 
Up to 4 hours - £4.00 
Up to 10 hours - £6.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

Ramsden Hall 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Slater Street 1, 2 
& 3 

(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

Strand 1 & 2 
(Contract Only) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place.   
 

Contract holders in 
spaces marked with a 
letter “C” or otherwise 

indicated as only 
available for contract 

holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 

£600 + VAT = £720 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Town Hall 
Courtyard 
(Disabled 
Parking) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay - displaying a 

disabled persons badge 
and clock set to the time 

of arrival 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

 

No charge 

Town Hall 
Courtyard 

(Authorised 
vehicles only) 

Permit holders only or 
otherwise indicated as 

only available for permit 
holders 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

No charge 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Tudor Square, 
Dalton 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 2 
hours.  No return 
within 3 hours. 

 
 

No charge 

West Shore Car 
Park 

(Free Parking) 

Any Vehicle to be wholly 
within a bay marked on 

the parking place. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

Motorhome 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
No overnight parking 
without permission 

 

No charge 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



(1) 
Name of 

Parking Place  
(parking 

designation) 
 

(2) 
Position in which 

vehicle may be parked 

(3) 
Class of vehicles 

(4) 
Days and times of 

operation & 
maximum period a 
vehicle may stay 

(5) 
Scale of charges 

Whittaker Street 
(Long Stay) 

Wholly within a parking 
bay. 

 
Disabled parking - 

displaying a disabled 
person’s badge and 

clock set to the time of 
arrival. 

Motor Car 
 

Motor Cycle 
 

No non-motorised 
vehicles, HGV’s or 

coaches 

Monday to Saturday 
(Excluding Bank 

Holidays) 
8.00am to 6.00pm 

 
Maximum stay 10 

hours 
 

or 
 

3 hours in a 
designated disabled 
person’s parking bay 

as indicated by a 
sign or surface 

markings. No return 
within 2 hours. 

Up to 20mins – 0.40p 
Up to 1 hour   - £1.30 
Up to 2 hours - £2.30 
Up to 3 hours - £3.00 
Up to 4 hours - £4.00 
Up to 10 hours - £6.00 

 
Motor Cycle – no charge 

 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

Name of policy, procedure, strategy or service: 

Traffic Regulation Order 2022 (TRO 2022) 

 

 

Who has completed this assessment? (Minimum of 2) 

Officers: Mike Otto – Car Parks and Admin Services Manager 

 

Department:  Car Parks and Admin Services 

 

Description of the policy, strategy or service: 

The TRO sets out the restrictions and subsequent contraventions and penalties for the 
car parks 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1.  Are the aims of this strategy, policy or service consistent with the 
Equality & Diversity Strategy/Policy? 

The aims of the Traffic Regulation Order 2022 are aligned to the Equality and Diversity 
Strategy.   
The TRO will ensure all car park users are treated fairly and that everyone has equal 
access the car parks. 
 
 

 

2.  Who will this service affect? 
     Residents, staff?      Which ones, where? 

All users of the car parks be that residents, staff or visitors to the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 
 

 

 

3.  What do you already know from customers about this service or 
function? Give details of any research, consultation or data that 
has been collected, including complaints. 

As a department we have never had any complaints or comments regarding the Traffic 
Regulation Order.   
Also, there has been no consultation prior to the making of the Order.  However, the 
process of making the Order requires a public consultation period of 28 days in which 
time there is opportunity to comment on the Order. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

4.  Is this information sufficient or could more be done to find out 
what customers think or want from the service? If so what?  

The making of the Order does include a statutory consultation period. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 

 

 

 
Please complete the following table and give reasons/comments where: 

a) The service could have a positive impact on any of the diversity groups by eliminating unlawful discrimination, promoting equality 
and diversity or improving relations within the diversity groups. 

   b)  The service could have a negative impact on any of the diversity groups, i.e. disadvantage them in any way. 

Diversity group Positive 
impact 

Negative 
impact 

Neutral Don’t 
Know 

Comments Evidence 

Race  

 

    The only potential issue is 
the TRO and subsequent 
car park signs are only 
produced in English.  
However, the car park 
markings are universal 
images rather than words. 

No complaints or requests ever 
received regarding the 
language on the signage or for 
the TRO to be produced in a 
different language 

Sex     The car parks are open for 
anyone regardless of sex to 
use 

      

Gender Reassignment 

 

    As above       

Disability 

 

    The TRO enables the 
disabled spaces on the car 
parks to be enforced thus 
preventing none blue badge 
holders from parking in them 

      

5.  Recording the impact 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 

 

 

Sexual Orientation 

 

    Car parks open for all to use       

Religion or Belief 

 

    As above       

Age     As above       

Pregnancy and Maternity     There are no parent/child 
spaces in any car park, 
however, the TRO does give 
the authority to enforce 
contravention 95 – Parked in 
a parking place for a 
purpose other than that 
designated – which would 
enable protection of such 
spaces were they created 

No requests for parent/child 
spaces or complaints received 
for not having any such 
provision 

Marriage and Civil Partnerships     Car parks open and 
available for anyone to use 

      

Socio-economic disadvantage 
(including rural deprivation, 
‘rurality’) 

    Range of tariffs.   

The TRO includes provision 
to “protect” the use of newly 
installed Electric Vehilce 
Charge Points thus 
allieviating any fear from 
users of being unable to 

      

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 

 

 

charge their vehilce. 

 

6.  If there is any negative impact, can it be justified?  

There is no negative impact.  The purpose of the TRO is to state the permitted use of the car park and prevent unauthorised useage.  
For example, it enables the enforcement of disabled bays. 
 
 

7.  Outsourced Services  

If the service or function is partly or wholly provided by external 
organisations or agencies, please list any arrangements you have to 
ensure that they promote equality and diversity. Include this in your 
improvement plan. 
 

N/A 

 

8.  Relations between different equality groups  

Does the assessment show that a policy or process may cause a 
potential adverse impact between different diversity groups? If yes, 
please explain how the improvement plan is going to tackle this issue. 

 

No 

 

 

 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 

 

 

 

Action 

 

Outcome Target date Responsible 

Officer 

How will this be communicated to 
make residents aware of changes 
and ensure that staff understand?  

                              

 

                              

 

                              

 

                              

 

                              

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

9.  Actions: Please identify any actions that will take place following this Equality Impact Assessment in the 
table below. 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 

 

 

 

 

Date completed: 12/10/21                             Signed by assessors: Mike Otto, Car Parks and Admin Services 

                       [name & job title] 

           [name & job title] 

 

 

Date:                                                         Approved by:                        [principal director]  

 

Review date:       

 

10.  Arrangements for regular monitoring of the impact of the policy, process or service. 

Day to day car park usage including any complaints or comments. 

TRO review every 3 years unless modifications or amendments need to be made prior to that.   
 
 
 
 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Page 90

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 91

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 92

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 93

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 94

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 95

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 96

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 97

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 98

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 99

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 100

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 101

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 102

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 103

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 104

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 105

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 106

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 107

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 108

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 109

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 110

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 111

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 112

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 113

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 114

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 115

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 116

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 117

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 118

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 119

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 120

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 121

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 122

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 123

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 124

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 125

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

12 January 2021 

High Street Heritage Action Zone Public Realm 
 

   

Report from:   Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Rory Wood, HSHAZ Project Officer 

Wards:    Central, Hindpool 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

 
1.1 This report seeks authority to delegate the appointment of an external contractor 

to deliver the public realm improvements as set out in the High Street Heritage 
Action Zone application.  
 

1.2 The HSHAZ boundary is set within the Central Barrow Conservation Area and 
spans both Central and Hindpool wards, taking in sections of Cornwallis St, Duke 
St, Ramsden Sq and Abbey Rd. The scheme will grant aid building repairs, fund 
public realm works, planning interventions, feasibility studies on key buildings, and 
run events to increase engagement and footfall. 

 

1.3 The High Street Heritage Action Zone programme was announced by Government 
in 2019 to improve footfall on the high street and public engagement through 
heritage-led regeneration. Barrow Borough Council secured £1.1m in funding 
through the programme to support the regeneration of the Barrow HSHAZ. A 
further £71,000 of funding was granted in May 2021 for additional projects. 

 
2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 Executive Committee is asked to agree that: 

(1) That delegated authority be given to the Director of People and Place, 
in consultation with the Director of Resources following the 
procurement exercise to award  a contractor to deliver public realm 
capital works funded by the HSHAZ Programme. 

 

Page 127

Agenda Item 10



3.0  Background and Proposals  

Background to the Proposals 
 

3.1  Previous reports to Exec Committee to update on the HSHAZ were discussed 4th 
March 2020 and 10th February 2021. 

 
3.2 A tender for consultant support for the public realm scheme was undertaken in 

March 2021, with the appointment of external landscape architects as lead 
consultant in April 2021. 

 
3.3 The scheme has been developed through public consultation at the 50th birthday 

market celebrations, HSHAZ hands-on heritage skills event and online workshops. 
 
3.4 The public realm works can be carried out under Permitted Development rights so 

therefore planning permission is not required. A Traffic Regulation (TRO) and 
Section 278 Agreement will be needed to permit the amendments to parking 
spaces, double yellow lines, humped crossing in the highway, etc. A new utilities 
connection application will be required to United Utilities once a contractor has 
been appointed. 

 
3.5 With limited funding available for this type of project, the works focus on 

delivering the highest impact scheme within the budget that will improve the 

character and attractiveness of Duke Street to encourage an increase footfall 

and dwell time.  

 
Project Delivery  
 
3.6 Impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic have led to delays in appointment of a HSHAZ 

project officer, procurement of the public realm design team and procurement of 
the public realm capital works contractor; as such, it is programmed that a 
contractor can be appointed by mid-February to spend money on the capital works 
before 17th March 2022, when all claims submissions must be made to Historic 
England. 

 
3.7 The works will be delivered under a JCT Intermediate Contract, which is a standard 

form of building contract. The contract will be administered by an externally 
appointed quantity surveyor, and all works will be checked on site by externally 
appointed landscape architects and civil engineers to ensure compliance with 
contract documents. 

 
3.8 The project is currently out to tender with a tender return date of the 19th January 

2022. 
 
3.9 If the project successfully starts on site mid-February, it is expected to run for 5 

months through to mid-July 2022. 
 
3.10 Members are asked to delegate the award of the contract for the works to the 

Director of People and Place in consultation with the Director of Resources. 

Page 128

Agenda Item 10



 
4.0 Consultation  

 

4.1 The tender process will be open and transparent and in line with the Council’s 

Procurement procedures. 

 

4.2 Two initial online workshops were run with local businesses in May to discuss 

strategic approaches to public realm improvements. General response was that 

they would not accept pedestrianisation of Duke St and reduction in parking 

provision would impact their trade. Response to street greening, improving street 

furniture and public spaces was well received. Further in person consultations 

were held looking at a reduced scope due to the cost of works; response was 

generally positive but businesses were still concerned about reduction in parking 

provision to accommodate street trees, etc. These plans have been taken forward 

as adjustments to free parking will be subject to a formal consultation process 

through the TRO application. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

 
5.1 Alternative Option (a) Do not carry out capital works 
 

 Do not appoint contractor to carry out capital works 

 This option is not valid as Council has responsibility under the funding 
agreement to deliver the works. 
 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 This project primarily supports the Priorities of the Barrow Council Plan, in 

particular in creating a vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to 

live and supporting the economy to thrive. The project aims to increase footfall, 

experience, dwell time and customer spend in the town centre, supporting the local 

economy.  

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

 

7.1 Around £115k is profiled to be spent against the public realm works in the 2021-

22 financial year, which will be lost if not claimed before 17th March 2022. The 

Council does not have the resources to fund any gap in the HSHAZ programme, 

it is vital that this project commences in this financial year. 

 

7.2 Total value of works is likely to be over £400k as per the quantity surveyor’s most 

recent cost assessment. The balance of works must be delivered in the 2022-23 

financial year as per the HSHAZ project profile. 

 

7.3 The Council are the accountable body under the funding agreement and therefore 

have responsibility for the delivery of the programme. 

Page 129

Agenda Item 10



 

Legal  

 

7.4 The procurement to support the delivery will be subject to the Council’s contract 

procedural rules and any legislative requirements. The successful tenderer will be 

required to enter into a contract for the works. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

 

7.5 Not applicable to undertake EIA.  
 
Risk 
 
There are a number of risks that will need to be addressed.  These are summarised below 
and will be kept under review as the project develops: 
 
Risk  Risk Description Like-

lihood 
(1-5) 

Impact 
(1-5) 

Score Proposed Mitigation 

S278 
Application 

Negative or 
untimely 
response 
received to S278 
Application 

3 5 15 Escalate with CCC to ensure they 
complete necessary works in 
time. 

Traffic 
Regulation 
Order 
Application 

Negative or 
untimely 
response 
received to TRO 
application 

3 5 15 Escalate with CCC to ensure they 
complete necessary works in 
time. 

No tender 
responses 

There is a risk 
that the Council 
fails to receive 
any tenders.  

3 5 15  

Responses 
inadequate 

 2 5 10  

Responses 
over budget 

 2 4 8 Reduce scale of works dependent 
on budget 

Covid 19 Another wave of 
COVID-19 forcing 
another lockdown 
and restricting 
construction 
progress 
 

2 3 6 Reduced risk with works being 
outside. Appropriate risk 
assessment and method 
statements will be prepared to 
ensure project activities can 
progress within social distancing 
restrictions.  

 

Contact Officers  

Helen Houston, hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk  

Rory Wood, rwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report - None 

Page 130

Agenda Item 10

mailto:hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:rwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

12 January 2022 

Future Management Arrangements of Piel Island 

 
 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  
 

1.1.1 This report brings forward an update on Piel Island, incorporating work undertaken 

by the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group and asks Executive Committee to 

consider and agree the future management arrangements for Piel Island.   

 

2.0 Recommendation  
 

2.1.1 Executive Committee is asked to consider the following recommendations: 
 

(i) To agree to the proposed management arrangements as set out in the 

report and delegate authority to the Director of People and Place, in 

consultation with the Chair of Executive Committee, to undertake the 

procurement process and award the new contract; 
 

(ii) To note their appreciation for the work that officers put into getting 

the Ship Inn ready to be re-opened this season at very short notice; 
 

(iii) To note the lessons learnt from the partnership approach and thank 

the Piel Island Pub Company for their contribution; and 
 

(iv) To note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Piel Island Working 

Group will continue to receive progress updates. 

 

3.0 Background and Current Position 

 

3.1 Barrow Borough Council are the custodian of Piel Island and until late May 2021, 

the management of Piel Island including running the Ship Inn, maintaining the toilet 

block and the Island grounds was undertaken by the holders of a lease from the 

Council.  The leaseholders decided before the end of their lease that they wished 

to terminate the arrangement.  

   

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Head of Visitor Economy and Culture 

Wards:    All Wards - located in Roosegate  

Page 131

Agenda Item 11



 

3.2 The Council at the time had secured some resources to support its climate change 

pledge to be carbon neutral by 2037.  Piel Island was seen as a great asset that 

could benefit from some of this resource and an area that we could really promote 

to residents and visitors as a great place to visit.  Therefore, the Council accepted 

the leaseholders decision and formally concluded the early termination of the lease 

in late May 2021. 

3.3 Ensuring that Piel Island could be shown to its best advantage, Barrow BC needed 

to fully understand its full potential for the future.  To enable the Ship Inn to re-

open after a period of closure and early termination of the lease took considerable 

effort from a team of Council officers who volunteered to go over to Piel Island and 

repaint it, organise deep cleaning and deal with a range of other issues.  This was 

done within a couple of weeks to then enable us to show prospective interested 

partners around the premises.   

3.4 For this last season and in the light of the impact of Covid, a pilot partnership 

approach was put into place with a provider to truly understand what a longer term 

management arrangement might look like to make the best of Piel Island for all. 

This provider was a local company that had experience in running pubs and they 

subsequently established the Piel Island Pub Company.  The arrangement was 

that it would be June to September 2021 and be open book accounting to 

understand the costs and income from Piel Island. 

3.5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee have been looking at the arrangements for the 

management of Piel Island as part of their work programme for the year. The 

Overview and Scrutiny working group have concluded that the lessons learnt from 

this season are as follows: 

 Piel Island is a unique place and any operator needs to appreciate 

the constraints offered by power, weather, access and its location 

within an area of Site of Special Scientific Interest. 

 Visitors to Piel Island are short stay and want a basic meal and drink 

 Camping and paying a small fee was popular 

 The relationship with the ferry operator and the management 

arrangements for Piel Island is really important 

 Alternative access arrangements off the Island besides the ferry 

need to be in place 

 More outside seating is needed to facilitate visitors 

 The community ownership of Piel Island and its local appeal and 

natural habitat is really important 

 There were no incidents of anti-social behaviour reported, which was 

contrary to perception.   

 Any operator needs to manage and maintain the island and its 

assets to a standard that the Council expects 

 All aspects of the Island except for external urgent repairs to the 

buildings and jetty maintenance to be the responsibility of the 

operator 

Page 132

Agenda Item 11



 

 Emergency planning for incidents with agencies is an essential part 

of any future management arrangements 

 There is potential for events and Piel Island is an essential element 

of any destination marketing.  Any operator would need a formal 

relationship with the Council to enable this. 

 Communication about Piel Island and whether buildings are open 

and food and drink are being served is the responsibility of the 

operator 

 Any operator needed experience in operating a licenced premises 

and with access to staff, financial sustainability and be prepared to 

open for a short period of the year whilst retaining responsibility for 

the premises and the Island all year round.  

3.6 The Overview and Scrutiny Working Group felt that the partnership arrangements 

had demonstrated that despite challenging circumstances, Piel Island and its 

facilities were made available as often as possible for visitors.  The options for 

future management arrangements were discussed by the group.  The level of 

resource and capacity of officers meant that self delivery of Piel Island was 

prohibitive.  Also, Barrow Forward was not yet established and did not have the 

necessary infrastructure to take on the management of Piel Island.   

3.7 Members felt that an open and transparent procurement for a suitably experienced 

operator should take place.  The above lessons learnt should inform the service 

specification and that a media campaign could run alongside the procurement 

process to encourage people to register to submit an interest through the 

appropriate channel.  The emphasis would be on a long term 10 year lease with 

an annual review of performance and a rental charge that would be subject to 

review  over the time period.  Therefore, the preferred option was to gain approval 

from Executive Committee to this approach, advertise the opportunity in January 

2022 for a start date in early March 2022.   

3.8 As part of Low Carbon Barrow, a feasibility piece of work is underway to explore 

alternative energy sources.  This is exploring solar PV for the roof of the Ship Inn 

and the toilet block as examples.  The existing toilet block is also going to be 

demolished and replaced.  A service specification for a design and build for a new 

eco-friendly block is underway.  The opportunities for what is the art of the possible 

are underway with planning due to the location of the island.   

3.9 Members are asked to consider the report and the recommendations to Executive 

Committee.   

4 Consultation  

4.1 The lessons learnt have come from both the partnership outcomes with Piel Island 
Pub Company, officers and ward members who have all fed their own views and 
those from the community into the process to shape future arrangements.  The 
media campaign to encourage operators to apply for this opportunity will be 
sensitively managed to ensure that the sense of community ownership will remain 
and that the right calibre of operator is attracted.   

Page 133

Agenda Item 11



 
5.0 Alternative Options  

5.1 The option in the report is considered to be the most appropriate at this time to 

take forward the future management arrangements for the island.     

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Creating a vibrant, safe and welcoming place and that our neighbourhoods are 
clean, welcoming and attractive, working towards the outcome of our environment 
is enhanced, protected and celebrated.  

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 A suitable rent will be set as part of the preparation of the service specification and 
aside from any emergency structural repairs all other costs will be the 
responsibility of the operator. Emergency structural repairs would remain the 
responsibility of the Council unless there was intentional damage caused by the 
operator. Emergency structural repairs are funded from the Renewals Reserve. 

 

7.1.2 The rent review arrangements will be specified with clear evidence requirements 
and the process to be observed each year; this will include the triggers for any 
subsequent actions in terms of the rent level. 

 

7.1.3  Officer time will be employed in creating the specification, carry out the 
procurement, and carrying out the annual review alongside the normal functions 
of the Council as landlord. 

 
7.2 Legal  
 

7.2.1 There are no issues to raise in this report.  Future procurement should be in 

compliance with the Councils’ financial regulations and contract standing orders, 

and contracts will be drawn up as appropriate.   

 

7.3 Equality and Diversity  
 

7.3.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this report.   

 
7.4 Risk 
 

7.4.1 That there are no suitable operators, but various individuals and organisations 

have already approached the Council.  The mitigation of the risk is that a media 

campaign will also focus on driving interest to the service specification where the 

detail and expectations will be provided.  

 

Contact Officers  

Steph Cordon:  Director of People and Place scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Sandra Baines, Head of Visitor Economy and Culture 

Page 134

Agenda Item 11

mailto:scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

None  

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

 

none 

 

 

 

 

Page 135

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

Wednesday, 12 January 2022 

Procurement Strategy 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  To consider the revised Procurement Strategy for adoption. 

  

2.0 Recommendation ` 

 

 It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

 

(1) approve the revised Procurement Strategy 2022-23 as attached at 

Appendix A ; and  

(2) note that a future report will bring forward proposed amendments to 

contract procedure rules for potential implementation from 1 April 

2022. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 A desktop document review of standing orders, procurement strategy, 

procurement process, data analysis of current activity, and Terms and 

Conditions review has recently been undertaken by STAR Procurement,  a well-

established and successful public sector shared service.  This included 

interviews with key personnel and key commissioners which has led to a new 

suite of documents being drafted as part of the Council’s review of its 

procurement processes. 

 

3.2 This report brings forward a revised Procurement Strategy which has been re-

written to become a more strategic document, rather than operational.  The 

headings replicate the priorities and themes within the National Procurement 

Strategy for Local Government to ensure best practice.  It also links to the 

Barrow Corporate Plan to demonstrate how procurement will be helping to 

deliver to the Council’s vision and objectives, and Anchor Collaborative which the 

Council has signed up to. 

Page 137

Agenda Item 12



 

3.3 Members are recommended to approve the Strategy as attached to this report.  

Work is ongoing to review the contract procedure rules and procurement 

checklist, and these will be brought forward to Executive Committee prior to any 

constitutional changes being recommended to Council. 

 

3.4 Following this it is intended that a package of training will be developed and 

provided to officers with a view to new procedures being in place to take effect 

from 1 April 2022. 
 

4.0 Consultation  

 Management Group have been consulted on the proposals as they have come 

through in draft form and comments have been fed in as appropriate. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The alternative option is not to adopt the revised Strategy. This is not 

recommended. Procurement is going through a period of change both nationally 

and locally.  It is important to ensure that procurement processes and strategy 

remain compliant, up to date and reflect emerging best practice 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Barrow Council Plan sets out that the vision is for the Borough to be a great 
place to live, work and visit. We will achieve this by being a compassionate 
Council, putting residents at the heart of all we do. This is underpinned by the 
following values and behaviours:  

 To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our customers 
and colleagues. 

 To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open and 
confident to challenge and be challenged. 

 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.  
 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.  
 We will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals. 

 
7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 It is vital at the Council can demonstrate strong financial stewardship and 

achieve of value for money. 

 

7.2 The Council’s procurement strategy and rules must be clear, communicated, and 

complied with in all contracting and procurement undertakings. 

 

7.3 The cost of the external expertise from STAR Procurement is met by existing 

budgets; STAR Procurement were directly appointed as reported on the 15 

September 2021. 

  

Page 138

Agenda Item 12



 

Legal  

7.4 There are no legal issues arising from this report. The Procurement Strategy will, 

if adopted, become the formal Council policy on procurement matters. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable for this 
report 

 

Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The main risk with 

procurement is that if it is not 

properly co-ordinated and 

controlled the Council is 

unlikely to achieve good 

value for money 

Unsatisfactory value for 

money audit opinions 

Ensure Policy and 

procurement processes 

are up to date and fit for 

purpose 

   

 

Contact Officers  

Name, email address 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Draft Procurement Strategy 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1Constitution 

2 

Add links where possible 

  

Page 139

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Procurement Strategy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Procurement Strategy 

Version: 1 

Author: Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved: 2022 

Review Date: 2023 

  

Page 141

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 
Procurement Strategy 

 
A. Introduction 
 
Barrow-in-Furness is a port town in the borough of Barrow-in-Furness in Cumbria, and 
whilst being one of England’s smallest Boroughs it boasts 274 listed buildings and 4 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest.   
 

B. Council Vision, Values and Priorities 
 
Our Council Plan 2020 – 2024 outlines our Vision and Values and 3 clear Priorities 
and required actions to deliver better lives for the people of Barrow.   

 Priority 1: People – Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive 
lives. 
 
Develop procurement strategies that focus on delivering Social Value, equality 
and good working conditions for employees   

 Priority 2: Place – Creating a great place to live  
 
Develop strategies to consider the environmental implications in procurement 
activity 

 Priority 3 – Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a long-term 
economic future for all our community. 
 
Develop procurement practices that promote market engagement and spend 
with local companies. 

Barrow Borough Council is a member of the Morecambe Bay Anchor Collaborative, 
and has signed up to the Morecambe Bay Anchor Charter. By working with other 
anchor institutions in the collaboration, the Morecambe Bay Anchor Collaborative will 
make a difference to local people by:  

 Widen access to quality work 

 Purchase and commissioning for social benefit  

 Use buildings and spaces to support communities  

 Reduce environmental impact 

 Work closely with local partners 

 Reduce inequalities 

 

In addition to boosting economic growth and supporting a healthy population, health and care 
organisations, along with other Anchor Institutions have the potential to create the conditions 
needed to help tackle inequalities. 

This procurement strategy will support the delivery of these priorities, and outlines how 
we will promote procurement objectives to deliver the vision and values. 

  

Page 142

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 
C. What is procurement? 

Procurement is the process of acquiring supplies, services and works.  It includes 
acquisition from third parties and in-house providers.  The process spans the full 
procurement cycle from identifying the need, through to the end of a contract or the 
end of useful life of an asset and lessons learnt.  It involves early stakeholder 
engagement, assessing impact on relationships and linkages with services internally 
and externally, options appraisals and the critical ‘make or buy’ decision whilst 
determining the appropriate procurement strategy and route to market.1 Procurement 
is therefore much wider than simply purchasing, and through the effective 
implementation of our procurement strategy we will be able to demonstrate the added 
value that procurement can bring. 

 
D. Why is Procurement Important? 

Local Government currently has a total revenue budget of £44billion2 per annum.   
Therefore the procurement activity that buys in supplies and services is critical to 
ensuring that best value is being obtained.  

 Public procurement is about improving the delivery and cost effectiveness of 
quality public services to citizens  

 Procurement can be a mechanism to challenge current service arrangements 
and find new models for service delivery  

 Savings realised through better procurement can be channelled back into 
priority services  

 Procurement can achieve additional added value benefits to residents through 
effective use of supply chains 

 Ensures that we deliver best value 

 Our professionalism and planning can help prevent financial loss to the 
Council and support our services and reputation  

 
E. Why do we have a Procurement Strategy? 

Our Procurement Strategy sets out our strategic approach to procurement activity.  It 
is not intended to be an operational guide to procurement; however the objectives 
should be applied to all our procurement activity.   

  

                                                           
1 National Procurement Strategy for Local Government, 2014 
2 Core spending power: final local government finance settlement 2017 to 2018 

Page 143

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 
F. Strategic Influence 
 
There is a wealth of national, regional and local strategies and legislation that 
influences our procurement activity.  The diagram below is not exhaustive but gives 
an indication of the strategic context in which we operate. 

 

In this complex and multi-layered context, our Procurement Strategy is designed to 
provide clarity as to how we will embed the strategic context into our procurement 
activity.   

It will provide a consistent approach to procurement and practical guidance to buyers 
and suppliers as to how we deliver effective procurement activity. 

  

National

• Public Contract Regulations (2015)

• New Regulations

•National Procurement Policy Statement

• Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012

• National Procurement Strategy for Local 
Government 

• Care Act (2014)

• Procurement Policy Notes

• Local Government Transparency Code 2015

Regional
• Local Government Reform

• Devolution Deals

•Morecambe Bay Anchor Collaborative 
Charter

Local
•Barrow Corporate Plan

•MTFP

•Contract Procedure Rules

• Procurement Handbook and advice

Page 144

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 
G. Council Strategy 
 
The LGA launched the National Procurement Strategy for Local Government in 
England (NPS) in February 2018 after extensive consultation and engagement.  These 
priorities and themes have been identified by local Councils themselves as being 
necessary for successful delivery of procurement in key areas. These have therefore 
been adopted by Barrow Borough Council as our key priorities and themes for 
procurement. 
 

 
 
H. Priorities 

Showing Leadership 

We aim to continue to champion procurement and collaboration to support the 
significant changes on the horizon including Local Government Reform and new 
Regulations.  We will use our skills and expertise to develop our added value and 
ensure that we promote the importance of strategic procurement to share and support 
wider partners on their journey. 

We will maximise the opportunities presented by Local Government Reorganisation.  
We will collaborate across our wider Partners to effectively deliver a wider range of 
outcomes across Cumbria and through our anchor partners in the Morecambe Bay 
Anchor Collaborative Charter. We value the fact that we are stronger together.  

Behaving Commercially 

We will behave commercially and deliver value for money to ensure we maximise the 
outcomes for Barrow and our wider community.  There is no one way to deliver savings 
or reduce costs; so we will deploy a wide range of approaches to ensure we get the 
maximum possible value for the money spent by the Council.  

We will drive efficiencies by adopting a collaborative and planned approach to 
procurement, contract review and contract management.   

Priorities

Showing leadership

Behaving commercially

Achieving community benefits

Themes

Developing talent

Expoliting digital technology

Enabling innovation

Embedding change

Page 145

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



We will strive to make efficiencies in our service provision.  This will be delivered by 
working collaboratively across our new partners under Local Government 
Reorganisation, driving economies of scale and increasing efficiencies. 

Achieving Community Benefits  

Our key activity in this area will be to identify and strengthen our local and SME spend.  
There are a number of activities we will put in place to give local suppliers and Small 
to Medium Enterprises (SME) the best possible opportunity to supply and provide 
services to us.  We will ensure that collaboration still supports our communities through 
the effective use of strategies and through active engagement with our suppliers. 

We will embrace Social Value to ensure that all of the businesses we contract with are 
supporting our local communities and adding value beyond their contractual 
requirement.  We will also ensure that we champion Social Value in all that we do. 

As a member of the Morecambe Bay Anchor Collaborative Charter we are committed 
to Social Value and through actions under Domain two we will develop and implement 
plans to shift more spend locally and embed social value into purchasing decisions.  
Social Value will also be used to deliver domain four on reducing environmental 
impact. 

I. Themes 

Developing Talent 

We will continue to develop our procurement capabilities throughout the Council.  We 
will have an effective training programme and will continue to promote Continuous 
Professional Development.  We will review opportunities to develop new skills and 
bring in additional expertise to strengthen our approach.  This will be supported by the 
work we undertake as part of the Morecambe Bay Anchor Collaborative Charter. 

Exploiting Digital Technology 

We will also look to strengthen and maximise the use of our e-tendering platform, The 
Chest.  We recognise that one size does not fit all, and we will therefore continue to 
engage face to face with our stakeholders through events, drop in sessions, meet the 
buyer engagement, and training. 

There is a wealth of procurement and spend data available to inform decisions and 
approach.  Through robust data analysis we can ensure that we manage, plan, 
monitor, and report on procurement activity.  We can use the data to inform our 
strategic procurement and collaborative approach.   

Enabling Innovation 

Procurement is rarely “black and white”, therefore we adopt a measured and risk 
managed approach to ensure that we do not stifle innovation and creativity.  

We will maximise the opportunities for innovation that will be presented through the 
new Regulations. We will ensure that we provide an appropriate amount of structure, 
whilst allowing for flexibility and agility of approach based around risk first, but ensuring 
simplicity and speed to market.  

Page 146

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

https://www.the-chest.org.uk/
https://www.the-chest.org.uk/


 
Embedding Change 

Although a relatively small procurement team, we recognise the importance of 
procurement to achieve our Corporate Objectives and the Morecambe Bay Anchor 
Collaborative Charter.  We will ensure that procurement is a priority and is viewed as 
a vehicle for change. 

J. Our Success 

As with any strategy it will be important to measure progress against targets and 
measures to enable our success to be monitored and reported.  However, this needs 
to be designed in a way that ensures robustness and transparency without being 
overly bureaucratic and burdensome. 
 

- The LGA Benchmarking exercise provides a useful baseline position from 
which to monitor and manage the success.  This has been undertaken in 2021 
and will be repeated on an annual basis to support our continuous improvement 
approach and to ensure compliance with the new national Procurement Policy 
Statement requirements on benchmarking. 

 

- Performance management data will be developed and reported to the Senior 
Management Team at least annually.  This will include metrics such as savings, 
social value and compliance. 

 

- Regular Feedback from internal and external stakeholders will be collated so 
the procurement process can be adapted and continuously improved. 

 

- Case studies will be developed to demonstrate the successes made through 
procurement, including qualitative and quantitative data.  These case studies 
will also help to promote the benefits of procurement, and encourage more 
proactive engagement. 

 

Where can I get more information? 

For further information please contact the Procurement Officer. 

 

Page 147

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee – 12 January 2022 

Full Council - 25 January 2022 

Officer Delegations 
 

   

Report from:   Chief Executive/Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    None 

  

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  To consider the review of Officer delegations ahead of the annual review of the 

Constitution to ensure that they are up to date following recent structural 

changes. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 Executive Committee is asked to recommend to Council that it:-  

(1) Approve the revisions to the Officer Delegations and Proper Officer 
Appointments as detailed within the report and Appendix 1 hereto; and 

(2) Add the Deputy Director of People and Place as an authorised Officer for 
attesting the affixing of the Council’s Common Seal. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  The Monitoring Officer is currently undertaking an annual review of the 

Constitution which is due to be presented to the March meeting of Council.  This 

report brings forwards some revisions to the Scheme of Delegation ahead of that 

following recent changes to the organisational structure. 

 

3.2 The attached revisions are shown as track changes in Appendix 1 for member 

approval. In the main they reflect changes to title with a new delegation to the 

new post of Head of Asset Management.  There is an additional delegation to the 

Head of Development Management which was agreed by Planning Committee on 

14 December 2021 and further delegation to the Head of Public Protection and 

Head of Asset Management with regards to s.77 directions under the Criminal 

Justice and Public Order Act 1994 to direct individuals to remove their vehicles 

and to leave land occupied without the consent of the occupier of the land. 

 

3.3 It is proposed that the delegations will take effect when approved, with the 

exception of the delegations to the Head of Asset Management with regards to 

Page 149

Agenda Item 13



Disabled Facilities Grants, etc. which is proposed should transfer with effect from 

1 April 2022. 

 

3.3  A suggested tweak to the Chief Executive’s emergency delegation is also 

included to cover Council meetings as well as Committee meetings, to provide 

additional flexibility during the COVID pandemic for those decisions which are not 

reserved to full Council. 

 

3.4 It is also proposed that the Deputy Director of People and Place be added to the 

list of Officers who can attest to the Common Seal. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 Management Group have been consulted with regards to the officer delegations 

to ensure that they are up to date. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Whilst the Council could resolve not to agree the recommendations put forward, 

the recommendations are to ensure that the Council has appropriate delegations 

and rules of procedure in place. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance and decision making underpins the delivery of the Council Plan 

and its objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no finance, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – the report has no direct 
Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

That appropriate decision making 

procedures and delegations are 

not in place 

Challenge to decision 

making process 

Monitoring and keep under 

review delegations and 

procedures 

 

Contact Officers  

Debbie Storr, dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Page 150

Agenda Item 13



Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Proposed revisions to Delegation scheme 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 Constitution www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

  

Page 151

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 1 

 

Part 3(2) 
Responsibility for Functions 

Scheme of Delegations to Officers 
 

 CONTENT PAGE 

1 Guidance and Background 2 

2 General Delegations 

 General delegations 3 

 Authorisations 4 

 Other provisions regarding general delegations 4 

3 Officer Delegations 

Section A Chief Executive, Directors and Deputy Director of People and Place 5 

Section B Head of Legal and Governance 12 

Section C 
Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement)Head of 

Development Management 
14 

Section D 
Development Services Manager (Building Control)Head of Building 

Control 
17 

Section E Public Protection ManagerHead of Public Protection 18 

Section F 
Property Services Group ManagerHead of Programme Management 

and Climate Change 
24 

Section G Collections and Exhibitions Manager 26 

Section H Head of Asset Management  

4 Appointments of Proper Officer & Deputy Property Officer 29 

5 Organisational Structure 35 

Page 153

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 2 

 

 

Part 1 – Guidance and Background 

 1. Introduction 

1.1  This part of Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council’s (“the Council”) Constitution deals 
with delegations from the Council and its committees to officers of the Council.  
Delegations to committees and sub-committees are set out in Part 3(1) of the 

Council’s Constitution. 

1.2   The scheme aims to provide evidence that the Council (or one of its committees) 
has authorised a particular officer of the Council to take an action or make a 
decision in given circumstances.  
 

1.3 The scheme meets the requirement in Section 100G (2) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 that the Council should maintain a list: (a) specifying those powers of the 
Council which are exercisable by officers of the Council in pursuance of 
arrangements made under the 1972 Act or any other enactment for their discharge 
by those officers; and (b) stating the title of the officer by whom each of the powers 
so specified is exercisable.  

 2. Legislative Framework 

2.1 Section 101(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers the Council to 
delegate certain of its functions to a committee, sub-committee or officer of the 
Council, or to another local authority.  

2.2 Only the body or officer on whom a statutory power has been conferred may 
exercise that power, unless sub-delegation has been expressly authorised by 
words or necessary implications. Section 101(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 
contains such a (limited) express power to sub-delegate. It provides that 
committees are empowered to sub-delegate to sub-committees or to officers, and 
that sub-committees are empowered to sub-delegate to officers, unless the Council 
otherwise directs. 

2.3 In general a delegation by the Council does not imply a parting with authority. The 
Council retains not only the power to revoke the grant but also the power to act 
concurrently on matters within the area of delegated authority (except in so far as 
the Council may already have become bound by an act of its delegate). Section 
101(4) formalises this general position in respect of delegation arrangements made 
by the Council or one of its committees, by providing that such arrangements shall 
not prevent the authority or the committee by whom the arrangements are made 
from exercising those functions (i.e. they retain concurrent power to do so).  

2.4 Legislative provisions prescribe that certain of the Council’s functions may not be 
delegated. These include:  

o levying, or issuing a precept for a rate (as per Section 101(6) of the Local 
Government Act 1972); and  

o functions listed The Local Authorities (Committee System) (England) Regulations 
2012.  

Page 154

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 3 

 

Part 2 – General Delegations 

1. General Delegations  

1.1  The Council delegates: - 
 

1.1.2 In respect of the officers, or the group of officers, named in Part 3 of this scheme, 
the functions described in that part, subject to consultation with the officer named 
in that part, where applicable;  
 

1.1.3  In respect of the appointments as Proper Officer and Deputy Proper Officer in the 
table in Part 4 of this Scheme, the functions mentioned in the first column of that 
table.  

 

1.2  Where the Council, a committee or a sub-committee gives authority for the doing of 
anything the officer designated shall be entitled to take all necessary steps for the 
doing of such thing.  
 

1.3  Where a delegation is made without naming an officer the delegation shall be 
deemed to authorise the Chief Executive or the appropriate Director to take such 
steps. 

 

1.4  The Chief Executive may exercise the powers delegated to any Officer except in 
relation to those functions allocated to the Director of Resources as Chief Financial 
Officer (within the meaning of the Local Government Act 1972 Section 151 and the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 Sections 112-114A (unless he or she is 
qualified under the Local Government Finance Act 1988 Section 113)) and to the 
Monitoring Officer (within the meaning of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 Sections 5, 5A).  
 

1.5  The Chief Executive is the Head of the Paid Service. 
 

1.6  The Director of Resources is the Chief Finance Officer. 
 

1.7  The Head of Legal and Governance is the Monitoring Officer. 
 

1.8  In the event that a Head of Service’s post ceases to exist or his or her 
responsibilities are transferred to another Head of Service (as the case may be), 
temporarily or permanently, then the powers given by this Scheme of Delegation 
shall be exercisable by the officer in whose area of responsibility the power falls to 
be exercised.  

 

1.9  Any reference in this Scheme or its Appendix to an Act of Parliament includes 
reference to subordinate legislation made under it and to any modification and/or 
replacement of it or of such subordinate legislation.  

 

1.10  The Scheme of Delegation as revised came into effect on 23rd March, 2021 unless 
otherwise stated. 

 

1.11  Nothing in this Scheme of Delegation shall prejudice the validity of any actions 
taken by Officers before 23rd March, 2021 under any previous scheme. 

Page 155

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 4 

 

2. Authorisations  
 

2.1  Officers to whom functions are delegated under this scheme may not sub-delegate 
those functions. However, where it would be impracticable for all the powers and 
duties conferred on a named person to be performed by that individual, that person 
may authorise officers in their departments to perform tasks, or to carry out specific 
statutory functions under the provisions of relevant legislation, on their behalf.  

 

2.2  Each Officer will ensure that where s/he wishes to authorise officers within her/his 
department to sign documents or perform functions on her/his behalf s/he will:  

 

2.2.1  Where applicable, record that authorisation, naming the officer, the date, tasks 
which that officer is authorised to perform, and including the signature of the 
officer, and retain that record until such a time it is no longer required; and 

 

2.2.2  Where applicable, comply with the requirements of the Council’s Financial 
Regulations and Contract Standing Orders.  

 

2.3  An authorised officer will perform the tasks on behalf of the authorising officer. Any 
decisions taken under this, or any other similar authority, shall remain the 
responsibility of the Authorising Officer and must be taken in the name of that 
Officer.  

 

3. Other provisions regarding general delegation 
 

3.1  Officers shall have delegated powers to make decisions on behalf of the Council in 
respect of those matters that are delegated to them within this scheme. A Director 
may exercise any delegations of an officer, for whom, that Director is responsible, 
in the absence or default of that officer. 

 

3.2  Where a delegation is made but without naming an officer, the delegation shall be 
deemed to be a delegation to the Chief Executive, or to the Director/Deputy 
Director responsible for that service area.  

 

3.3  The Chief Executive, Directors, Deputy Director and Heads of Service delegated to 
under this scheme may authorise officers as explained in paragraph 2 of this Part, 
above with each authorisation being copied to the Monitoring Officer. 

 

3.4  Where a Director/Deputy Director is to be absent for any period, that 
Director/Deputy Director may nominate to the Chief Executive, in writing, another 
officer to act in that capacity during the period of absence.  

 

3.5  The Chief Executive may appoint one or more deputies to exercise his/her 
functions owing to absence or illness and such deputy is or such deputies are 
authorised to exercise the functions of the Chief Executive pursuant to the 
Constitution, Financial Regulations and this Scheme of Delegation except in 
relation to those functions allocated to the Director of Resources as Chief Finance 
Officer (within the meaning of the Local Government Act 1972 Section 151 and the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 Sections 112-114A (unless he or she is 
qualified under the Local Government Finance Act 1988 Section113)) and to the 
Monitoring Officer (within the meaning of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 Sections 5, 5A) 

Page 156

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 5 

 

Part 3 - Scheme of Officer Delegations 

 Section A 

A. General Principles 

With the exception of the power set out in B.1.1 below the powers delegated to officers 
referred to in this part of the Constitution may only be exercised in accordance with the 
following general principles. 

1. All decisions taken must be in accordance with the approved budget, policy 
framework, financial regulations, contract standing orders, or any other procedure 
rules or requirements of this Constitution 

2. Where, in the opinion of the officer making a delegated decision, that decision is 
likely to be contentious, before taking that decision the officer will consult with the 
relevant Committee Chair or a more senior officer as the case may be. 

3. An officer may, instead of exercising a delegated power, refer the matter to a more 
senior officer or committee or the full Council as appropriate. 

B. General 

1. To the Chief Executive 

1.1 To take such action on behalf of the Council as appears to them necessary in 
circumstances that prevent obtaining the necessary authority from Council or an 
appropriate committee following consultation with the Leader of the Council, or the 
Chair of the committee concerned.  Where the Chief Executive is acting in an 
emergency and it involves spending outside any budgetary provision, then any 
expenditure must be reported to full Council at the first available opportunity. 

1.2 To deal with matters concerned with civic and ceremonial occasions together with 
civic hospitality including authorising at his/her discretion or on direction from the 
Executive Committee to arrange for the flying of the Union Jack flag over Barrow 
Town Hall on such occasion as may be appropriate and which are not among those 
presently specified. 

1.3 To oversee the discharge of the Employer’s responsibilities associated with the 
safety, health and welfare of persons not in the Council’s employment who may be 
placed at risk by the operation of the authority. 

1.4 To undertake on behalf of the Council negotiations and discussions with trade 
unions and other staff organisations concerned with employees of the Council. 

1.5 The determination of any applications from individuals and organisations using the 
facilities in consultation with the Leader and s.151 Officer. 

1.6 To consider any request for a review by any owner with regards to a decision to 
approve a nomination to the Council’s List of Assets of Community Value. 

1.7 To take all necessary administrative action in connection with the operation of 
elections and electoral administration 

1.8 To make such amendments as may be necessary from time to time to the Barrow-in-
Furness Parliamentary Polling Districts and the Barrow Borough Polling Districts. 

Page 157

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 6 

 

 
2. To the Chief Executive and Directors 
 
2.1 There is delegated to the Chief Executive and to the Directors (“the Officers”) all the 

powers and duties of the Council necessary for the discharge of the Council’s 
functions carried out within the Officer’s Directorate or area of responsibility, 
including day to day management of buildings and services under their control. 

2.2 To take all necessary steps to deliver the services for which they are responsible for 
to incur revenue expenditure within the Council’s budgets, subject to compliance 
with standing orders, financial regulations and any council policy for the time being in 
force. 

2.3 To manage and deal with all people, welfare, inclusivity and training issues (unless 
otherwise covered by the Officer Procedure Rules) including making changes within 
the establishment, within Directorate areas, provided that all decisions are within 
Council policies and approved budgets and within any general HR management 
policies and procedures.  

2.4 For the avoidance of doubt, people, welfare, inclusivity and training issues include 
appointments, promotions, discipline, grievance, early retirement, redundancy, 
leave, additional duties, ex-gratia payments, car allowances and any relevant 
appeals in accordance with HR management policies and procedures (unless 
otherwise covered by the Officer Procedure Rules). 

2.5 The appointment of staff above the NJC scheme but below Assistant Director level 
(as per Executive Committee Decision15.9.21 Minute No. 57). 

2.6 To be responsible for the health, safety and welfare of employees. 

2.7 To implement national agreements, salaries, terms and conditions of employment 
and to undertake negotiations and discussions on industrial relations as appropriate. 

2.8  To appoint staff as Duly Authorised Officers and Inspectors of the Council and 
suitable competent individuals not in the employ of the Council in appropriate 
circumstances. 

2.9 To exercise powers of entry for the purposes of any statutory power insofar as the 
powers relate to the functions entrusted to that Officer. 

2.10 To serve all notices relevant to statutory responsibilities that come within their area 
of responsibility and to take appropriate enforcement action in the event of default by 
persons served with such notices. 

2.11 The imposition of civil penalties under s.126 and Schedule 9 Housing and Planning 
Act 2016, and the application for Banning Orders under Part 2 of the Act and 
Applications for Rent Repayment Orders. 

2.12 Authentication of documents where necessary to any legal procedure or 
proceedings on behalf of the Council. 

2.13 Authorising Letters or Deeds of Postponement under s.156 Housing Act 1985 in 
accordance with the Council’s approved procedure 

Page 158

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 7 

 

2.14 To respond to the government and other consultation bodies following appropriate 
consultation. 

2.15 To take all steps necessary to implement decisions of the Council or its Committees. 

2.16 To consider any representations and objections received from persons on whom 
notices of intent are served under the Redress Scheme for Lettings Agency Works, 
etc. Regulations 2014 and in those cases to authorise final notices, either as set out 
in the notice of intent, in modified form or to withdraw notices. 

2.17 In relation to matters or functions for which the officer concerned is responsible, 
issuing requisitions for information under Section 16 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Section 330 of the Town and Country Planning 
act 1990 or any similar provision in any other existing or future legislation. 

2.18 To consider and make appointment of consultants. 

2.19 In consultation with the s.151 Officer to agree to act as Accountable Body where the 
project is less than £50,000 in total and satisfies the requirements of the Financial 
Regulations. 

2.20 In the absence of the Chief Executive, the power to make emergency decisions in 
consultation with the relevant Committee Chair or Vice-Chair in their absence 
together with the Leader of the Council. 

2.21 The setting of fees and charges, such fees and charges to be set against the 
Discretionary Income Policy or increased in line with the annual budget proposals. 

3. To Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Service  
 

3.1 Powers to take any decision on behalf of the Council, not otherwise delegated, 
which can lawfully be delegated to Officers, subject to the decision taker, before 
taking the decision, having taken appropriate steps to consult the Leader and/or 
Chair and if appropriate members of the Committee which would, save for this 
delegated power, have taken the decision. 

4. To the Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

The Council’s Financial Regulations set out in more detail the statutory and non-statutory 
powers of the Director of Resources and the rules within which the financial affairs of the 
Council are administered. 

4.1 The Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) has the following delegations and 
as set out in the above rules: 

4.2 Properly managing and administering of all the Council’s financial affairs in 
accordance with all statutory requirements, any adopted codes of practice and the 
Council’s Financial Regulations (including any technical adjustments to the Council’s 
approved budgets, or accounts to ensure compliance to safeguard the Council’s 
financial position. 

 

4.3 Preparation of the revenue budget and capital programme; responsibility for the 
overall financial control of the revenue budgets and capital programme of the 
Council.  For subdividing service budgets within the overall budget framework 

Page 159

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 8 

 

according to Council structure and services, having regard to relevant Codes of 
Practice.  For allocating the revenue budgets and capital programme wholly among 
responsible Heads of Service. 

 
4.4 To approve annually a list of expenditure proposals for which revenue budget 

provision had been made in the previous year and for which the particular goods or 
services had not been supplied before the financial year end; and a list of 
expenditure proposals on capital schemes for which provision had been made in the 
capital programme for the previous year but which was under or overspent so that 
supplementary estimates may be considered for the ensuing financial year. 

 
4.5  Where an individual debtor owes the Council no more than £25,000 (Borough 

share), the Director of Resources may approve the write off of that debt where there 
is satisfactory evidence that it is irrecoverable.  In any other case, the debt may be 
written off only with the approval of the Executive Committee.  However, there may 
be occasions when an immediate write off decision above £25,000 is necessary, for 
example at year end, to enable the completion of the final accounts within the 
statutory timescale.  In such cases the Director of Resources will have authority to 
approve a maximum Business Rate write off of no more than £62,500. 

 

4.6  Treasury management; the Director of Resources is responsible for all investment, 
borrowing and leasing undertaken in the name of the Council.  Preparation of the 
annual Treasury Management Policy Statement, Treasury Management Strategy, 
Investment Strategy, Prudential Indicators including borrowing limits, and ensure 
compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the 
Council’s Treasury Management Policy Statement. 

 

4.7 Preparation of an annual Capital Strategy. 
 

4.8 Maintaining an effective Internal Audit service. 
 

4.9 To determine the Council Tax Base, calculating the Council Tax Requirement, 
calculating the Council Tax as required by legislation; by Parish and by Band.  The 
award of mandatory or discretionary, exemptions, disregards and discounts.  Billing, 
collection and recovery of Council Tax due. 

 

4.10  To apply any applicable or relevant changes in the Housing Benefit Regulations to 
the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme.  Determining, assessing, awarding and 
paying Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support. 

 

4.11 To determine the Non-Domestic Rate Base. Dealing with all matters relating to the 
Business Rate Retention Scheme and agency arrangements, including billing, 
collection, recovery and the award of mandatory or discretionary, exemptions and 
reliefs.  Determining membership of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool. 

 

4.12 Payment of precept demands. 
 

4.13 To administer, bill, collect and enforce levies arising under a Business Improvement 
District (BID) Scheme.  Payment of the levy collected to the BID. 

 

4.14 To determine all arrangements for the collection, recording, payment and recovery of 
VAT. 

 

Page 160

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 9 

 

4.15 To arrange banking, treasury and other financial services, including indemnities, 
guarantees, bonds, securities, leasing arrangements and advances.  Only officers 
personally mandated by the Director of Resources may authorise payments and 
other documents transferring funds out of the Council’s bank accounts. 

 
4.16 Effecting all insurance cover on a corporate basis, through external insurance or 

through internal self-insurance arrangements as the Director of Resources considers 
appropriate.  Negotiating all claims in consultation with relevant Heads of Service 
where necessary, including settlement of those claims uninsured to a limit of 
£10,000. 

 

4.17 The administration of all arrangements for the payment of salaries, pensions, travel 
and subsistence claims and other emoluments to existing and former employees, 
and for all related matters. 

 

4.18 To institute and defend any legal proceedings in respect of any matter relating to the 
functions of the Council (including the service of any notice or order, the exercise of 
any power of entry and engaging the Council’s solicitors) in any case where such 
action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Council (including for the 
avoidance of doubt any officer acting under delegated powers) or in any case where 
the Director of Resources considers that such action is necessary to protect the 
Council’s interests. 

4.19 To make changes to the list of employees representing the Council in the 
Magistrates Court as section 151 Officer to deal with local taxation matters. 

4.20 To authorise Covert Surveillance under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
and within the Council’s adopted policy. 

5. To the Director of People and Place 

5.1 Authority to enter into new leases for Council owned shops and garages and for any 
other leases under the Landlord and Tenant Acts up to a period of 25 years.   

5.2 With Management Team, authority to consider and approve applications under the 
Council’s Corporate Community Lettings Policy (Executive Committee 10.3.21). 

5.3 Authority to agree and accept surrenders of leases. 

5.4 Authority to enter into licences in respect of land and property owned by the Council, 
including licences in respect of allotments, garage bases, fun fairs and ice-cream 
vending bases. 

5.5 To make representations as a responsible authority as outlined in the Licensing Act 
2003 for the following considerations: 

 Public Protection Services and  

 Health and Safety at Work 

5.6 To exercise the Council’s functions and enforcement powers under the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014  

Page 161

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 10 

 

5.7 To exercise the Council’s functions under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, 
including authority to serve and revoke statutory and fixed penalty notices and to 
take appropriate enforcement action in the event of non-compliance including:  

 

 Provisions with relation to litter 

 Waste Collection 

 Statutory nuisances and clean air 

 Contaminated land  

 Control of stray dogs, including functions imposed or conferred by s.149 (1)  

 Authority to waive kenneling fees either in part or in full where appropriate 
after consideration of the social implications of each case. 
 

5.8 To exercise the Council’s functions under the Traffic Management Act 2004 and 
relevant Traffic Regulation Orders, including cancellation of excess charge notices in 
accordance with the guidelines laid down. 

5.9 Authority to deal with all matters related to the Landlord and Tenant Act regarding 
Barrow Market, including rent reviews and variations, including any varying or 
waiving of rents, lease renewals, notices to quit and landlord approvals, where 
appropriate and where there is a social or economic benefit to the Borough in doing 
so. 

5.10 Management and enforcement of Market Tenancy conditions including use of legal 
remedies to deal with breaches by current and former tenants. 

5.11 The management of all stock within the Council’s Housing Revenue Account to be 
exercised in accordance with all relevant legislation and the Council’s agreed policy. 

5.12 Management and enforcement of tenancy conditions, including use of legal 
remedies to remedy breaches and to take action to recover debts outstanding with 
regards to former Council tenants, including use of legal redress. 

5.13 To authorise adaptations for disabled tenants up to the Council agreed limit 
(currently £40,000) 

5.14 Authority, in consultation with the Head of Legal and Governance, to defend the 
Council against any legal claims made against it in connection with the management 
of the Council’s housing stock, for example disrepair. 

5.15 To ensure applications to waive repayments of discount under the Right to Buy are 
dealt with expediently and in a confidential manner, delegation to consider and 
decide on such applications after consultation with the Chair of the Executive 
Committee and s.151 Officer. 

5.16 To agree the disposal and sale of small ad-hoc parcels of land on Council Housing 
Land where they are adjacent to and can be incorporated into adjoining residential 
belonging to the prospective purchase in accordance with agreed policy up to a 
value of £20,000. The authorisation includes instructing a conveyancing solicitor to 
transfer the legal title of the property. (Note: appeal through the Housing 
Management Forum if request is declined). 

5.17 Fulfilment of the Council’s statutory duties with regards to homeless persons. 

5.18 To hear and determine homelessness appeals 

Page 162

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 11 

 

5.19 making decisions re waiving repayment of discount under the Right to Buy after 
consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee and s.151 Officer. 

5.20 To approve or reject nominations for inclusion on the List of Assets of Community 
Value under s.88 of the Localism Act 2011. 

5.21 The setting of the following fees and charges, where discretionary, to be set against 
the Discretionary Income Policy: 

 

(a) Land Charge fees  
(b) The setting of charges for the Council’s Ordnance Survey Plan printing 

service. 
(c) To agree fees and charges for pre-application planning advice. 
(d) To set and review fees for charging for Environmental Information. 
(e) To set additional charges and future fees for discretionary activities against 

the Discretionary Income Policy. 
 

5.22 To formally enter into Planning Performance Agreements; agree any subsequent 
variations or amendments to an approved Planning Performance Agreement; and 
secure bespoke fees associated with any Planning Performance Agreements 
(Minute No. 22 Executive Committee 8th July, 2020 refers). 

 
5.23 Authority, in consultation with the Chair of Executive Committee to put in place the 

necessary arrangements to facilitate the establishment, governance requirements 
and ongoing control of the Local Authority Trading Company for the delivery of 
Leisure Services (Minute No. 117 Council 21st April, 2021 refers). 

 

6. To the Deputy Director of People and Place 

6.1 Authority to exercise any power delegated to his/her Director in this Section of Part 3 
that relates to his/her Directors’ area of responsibility 

Page 163

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 12 

 

 

 Section B 

 

To the Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
 
1.1 To be responsible for the conduct of all legal and quasi-legal proceedings entered 

into by the Council including the appointment of external Solicitors, Counsel and 
professional witnesses as appropriate. 

1.2 Instituting legal proceedings on behalf of the Council and representing the Council 
before any Court, Tribunal, Inquiry or other hearing. 

1.3 In consultation with the relevant Director, to take action, including prosecution in 
respect of any breach of legislation for which the Council, or an officer of the 
Council, is the responsible enforcement authority and it is in the interest of the 
Council and in the public interest to do so. 

1.4 In consultation with the relevant Director, to issue civil proceedings in any 
appropriate Court or Tribunal for the recovery of a financial payment, possession or 
repossession or property, or to seek any other appropriate remedy. 

1.5 To respond to all proceedings of a legal or quasi-legal nature issued against the 
Council in consultation with the s.151 Officer, to settle claims up to a maximum of 
£10,000 where there is a legal liability on the Council.  

1.6 The preparation and completion of documents required to give effect to decisions of 
the Council, its committees or sub-committees or officers acting under delegated 
authority. 

1.7 To serve any notices required under contract not otherwise delegated to the Chief 
Executive or a Director and to take appropriate enforcement action in the event of 
default by persons served with such notices. 

1.8 To approve applications for anti-social behaviour orders either by the Police or by 
the Council (This delegation is also with the Director of People and Place) 

1.9 Following consultation with the Chair of the Council, alter the agreed starting times 
of Council meetings if the volume of business to be transacted appears to warrant 
change. 

1.10 To take such action as is delegated to them under the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements 

1.11 In consultation with the Independent Person, the power to grant dispensations up to 
a maximum of 4 years in the following circumstances: 

 That he/she considers that without the dispensation the number of persons 
prohibited from participating in any particular business would be so great a 
proportion of body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the 
business 

 That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups on 
the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter the 
likely outcome of any vote relating to the business 

Page 164

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 13 

 

1.12 To respond on behalf of the Council, in consultation with the Chair of Audit and 
Governance, to national reviews and consultations on standards related issues. 

1.13 To administer the Members’ Allowances Scheme. 

1.14 To give effect to the wishes of the Political Group Leaders in relation to the 
appointment of Members to Committees and Sub-Committees pursuant to Section 
16, Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

1.15 To authorise Covert Surveillance under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
and within the Council’s adopted policy. 

 

 

Page 165

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 14 

 

 

 Section C 

Development Services Manager (Planning and EnforcementHead of 

Development Management) 

Delegations Exercising of 
Other Delegations  

 
1. To determine all applications for planning consent, 

advertisement consent, and listed building consent except:-  
 

i. Where the determination or observation would be contrary to 
current national guidance, the provisions of an approved 
Development Plan or other stated adopted Council policies.  

ii. When the application is classed as a Major application in 
accordance with government guidance, but excluding 
subsequent amendments whether Material or Non material. 

iii. Where the determination would be contrary to a 
recommendation of a Statutory Consultee that could not be 
addressed via a suitable condition or revision as agreed with 
the consultee.  

iv. Where the application affects Council owned assets (in the 
interests of transparency). 

v. In the case of householder development, where the 
application generates more than 3 written material planning 
comments from neighbours or other interested parties 
(comments from the same address count as 1) prior to 
determination or within 21 days of their publication in the 
press, or the despatch of a written consultation which would 
be contrary to the prospective decision. Where 1- 3 material 
comments are received the application shall be determined in 
consultation with the Planning Panel. 

vi. Where any Member notifies the Planning Manager or the 
Case Officer in writing within 21 days of the despatch of the 
weekly list of planning applications that he or she wishes the 
application to be referred to the Planning Committee for 
determination, unless the Member is satisfied by attending 
the Planning Panel and considering the Officer 
recommendations. (A pro forma is provided for this purpose 
with each copy of the weekly list of planning applications).  

vii. Where there is a request within the statutory determination 
period to address the Committee 

viii. Where the applicant is an elected Member. 
ix. Where the applicant is employed in the Development 

Services section, or is a close family member of such, 
(defined as spouse, parent, sibling or child of an employee) 

x. Where the Director of People and Place is of the view that the 
application or matter should be referred to the Planning 
Committee for determination. 

 

Page 166

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 15 

 

 
 

2. To make observations on all statutory and other notifications 
including consultations on County Matter applications except 
where such applications appear contrary to the Development 
Plan or national policy in which case the Panel shall be 
consulted. 

3. To determine all applications and consultations submitted 
under the relevant Hazardous Substances Regulations. 

4. To determine all applications for Screening and Scoping 
Opinions submitted under the relevant EIA Regulations 

5. To determine all applications subsequently found to consist of 
works that are Permitted Development 

6. To determine all applications pertaining to Prior Approvals 
and Prior Notifications (but where 3 written material planning 
representations are received from more than 3 neighbouring 
properties, then in consultation with the Planning Panel)  

7. To determine all applications submitted under the Larger 
Homes Extension legislation (but where written material 
representations are received, in consultation with the 
Planning Panel) 

8. To determine any matters when Reserved or made the 
subject of conditions in a Planning Consent, or any material 
or non-material amendments to that consent. 

9. To determine all applications for works to trees, including 
felling, pruning and requirements to replant, subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order 

10. To exercise the powers and duties of the Council under 
Sections 211 to 214 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 
1990 insofar as they relate to responding to notifications of 
intention to fell trees in Conservation Areas and to compiling 
a register under Section 214 of the said Act.  

11. To authorise making of Tree Preservation Orders and confirm 
unopposed Tree Preservation Orders under s.198 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and the 
Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) 
Regulations 2012. 

12. To review the Planning Authority’s Local Validation Criteria, 
undertake public consultation, and revise the criteria as 
necessary. 

11.  

12.13. The service of notices for the obtaining of information 
under Section 16 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, and section 330 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, or any amendments or re-
enactments thereof, as to interests in land. 

13.14. To exercise the powers of entry as set out in s.196A, 
196B, 214B, 214C, 214D, 324 and 325 Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and sections 88, 88A and 
88B of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 (as amended) and s.74 of the Anti-Social Behaviour 

Page 167

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 16 

 

Act 2003 and Regulation 12 of the Hedgerow Regulation 
s1997 and to authorise all other planning officers whose 
duties require such powers. 
 
 
 

14.15. To take, after consultation with the Planning Panel any 
necessary enforcement action including the service of a stop 
notice or a Temporary Stop Notice under Section 171E of the 
Planning Act 1990 where such development is in the process 
of being carried out and is considered to be unacceptable. 

15.16. To serve planning contravention notices, breach of 
condition or stop notice under s.171C, 187A and 183(1) of 
the Town and County Planning Act 1990. 

16.17. The taking of enforcement action, including the issue 
of an Enforcement Notice under s.172 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

17.18. Authority to withdraw an Enforcement Notice. 

18.19. To execute urgent works under s.54 of the Planning 
Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

19.20. To service notices under s,215(1) of the Town and 
County Planning 1990 to require proper maintenance of land 
and to take appropriate action in the event of non-compliance 
with any notice. 

20.21. To determine minor issues falling within the Case 
Priority Assessment List Level 4 of Council’s Enforcement 
Policy Guidance which in the professional judgement of the 
Development Services Manager (Planning and 
EnforcementHead of Development Manager) are of a nature 
that does not require a Member decision.  

21.22. To determine all applications for Certificates of 
Lawfulness, whether or not subject to representations 

22.23. To exercise the authority’s functions under Section 
225 of the Planning Act 1990. 

23.24. To deal with all, except the most serious cases, that 
fall into case priority assessment list level 1 of the revised 
Planning Enforcement Policy. 

24.25. To make any non-material amendments or minor 
changes to the Planning Enforcement Document. 

25.26. To approve within budget provision, work on agreed 
enhancement schemes. 

26.27. To determine, in consultation with the Planning Panel, 
the issue of remedial notices and to take any necessary 
action arising therefrom in relation to high hedges under Part 
8 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003.  

27.28. To take any action relating to the protection of 
important hedgerow under The Hedgerows Regulations 
1997. 

28.29. To dispose of planning applications in accordance with 
the Town and Country Planning GDPO 2015 Articles 40 (or 
any subsequent legislation re-enacting or revising this 

Page 168

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 17 

 

Article). 
 

All decisions are to be in line with the contemporary Code of 
Conduct.  
 

Page 169

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 18 

 

 

 Section D 

Development Services Manager (Building ControlHead of Building 
Control) 

Delegations Exercising of 
Other Delegations  

 
1. To be the Council’s representative and to take decisions on 

behalf of the Council under the Safety of Sports Grounds Act, 
1975 and the Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sports Act 
1986. 

 
2. To deal with all matters (including the serving of notices and the 

institution of legal proceedings) under the provisions of the 
Building Act, 1984 Section 77 (Dangerous Structures) and 
Section 78 (Dangerous Structures – Emergency Measures). 

 
3. To deal with all matters (including the serving of notices and the 

institution of legal proceedings under the provisions of the 
Building Act, 1984 Sections 80, 81 and 82 (Local Authorities’ 
powers concerning demolition). 

 
4. To deal with all Building Regulation applications and matters 

(including the service of notices and the institution of legal 
proceedings) subject to reporting on action taken to the relevant 
Committee on a quarterly basis in relation to any rejection of 
plans, refusal and/or approval or relaxations. 

 
5. To deal with the setting of charges with respect to the Building 

Regulation chargeable functions under the provisions of The 
Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 2010. 

 
6. To deal with Re-naming and numbering of existing individual 

properties and naming of new streets under the Town 
Improvement Clauses Act 1847. 
 

 
Principal Building 
Control Surveyor  
has authority to     
act in the absence   
of the Head of 
Building Control 
Development 
Services Manager 
(Building Control) 
 

Page 170

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 19 

 

 Section E 

Public Protection ManagerHead of Public Protection 

Delegations from Licensing Regulatory Committee 
Exercising of 
Other Delegations  

 

Taxi, Gaming, Food, Miscellaneous Licensing and registration 
functions (other than functions under the Licensing Act 2003 
and Gambling Act 2005) 
 

Determination of Applications 
 

Except where objections have been received; 
 

1. To determine any licence, registration, permission or consent for 
which the Licensing Regulatory Committee is responsible and 
attach to the grant of a licence such conditions as they consider 
reasonably necessary. 

2. To refer such applications to the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee/Sub-Committee which in the opinion of the Public 
Protection ManagerHead of Public Protection should be 
determined by them. 

3. To institute, defend or participate in any action, including but not 
limited to, enforcement action or legal proceedings in respect of 
any matter relating to the functions (including, where not 
delegated to any other officer, the service of any notice or order 
or the exercise of any power of entry) in any case where such 
action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Licensing 
Regulatory Committee or any officer acting under delegated 
powers in consultation with the Director of Resources. 

 

“Taxi” Licensing 
 

Private Hire / Hackney Carriage Drivers’ Licences 
 

4. To suspend or revoke a private hire or hackney carriage drivers’ 
licences for: 

 

(i)    Failure to provide such information as the Council considers 
reasonably necessary to enable them to make 
determinations regarding the continued safety and suitability 
of drivers during the term of the licence; 

(ii)   Contravention of any of the conditions of a licence or other 
relevant legislation; or 

(iii) Pursuant to s.61(1)(a) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and s.61 (1)(b) for ‘any 
other reasonable cause’ and to be permitted, where 
practicable in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair of 
the Licensing Regulatory Committee, to suspend or revoke 
immediately pursuant to s.61(2B) where it is considered 

 

Commercial Services 
Team Leader has 
authority to act in the 
absence of Head of 
Public Protection. 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 171

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 20 

 

necessary in the interest of public safety; 
 

Private Hire / Hackney Carriage Vehicles’ Licences 
 

5.  To suspend private hire and hackney carriage vehicle licences on 
any of the grounds contained in s.60(1) Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; and serve any relevant 
notice. 

 

Private Hire / Hackney Carriage Operators’ Licences 
 

6.  To suspend or revoke the licence of an operator on any of the 
grounds contained in s.62(1) Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976; and serve any relevant notice. 

 

Miscellanous Licensing & Registration 
 
Executive Hire 
 

7.  To determine applications for an Executive Hire Exemption 
Notice permitted under Section 75(3) Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 

Business and Planning Act 2020 
 

8.  To determine applications for pavement licences; to include 
setting the duration of the licence and attach such conditions as 
considered reasonably necessary and to take any necessary 
action in relation to the enforcement and revocation of the 
licence. 

 
Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and 
Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 
 
9.  To determine applications from a relevant person to be included 

on a register of fit and proper persons; to include attaching 
condition(s) as considered reasonably necessary to secure the 
proper management of the site, which may include a condition 
relating to the payment of an annual fee and to take any 
necessary action in relation to the removal from the register, 
enforcement and revocation of a site licence. 

 
 

Delegations from Licensing Committee 
 

 

Functions under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 
Powers under the Licensing Act 2003 
 

To determine applications for a personal licence where no Police 
objection is made. 
 

To determine applications for a premises licence and a club 
premises certificate where no relevant representation is made. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commercial Services 
Team Leader has 
authority to act in the 
absence of the Public 
Protection 

Page 172

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 21 

 

 

To determine applications for a provisional statement where no 
relevant representation is made. 
 

To determine applications to vary a premises licence or a club 
premises certificate where no relevant representation is made. 
 

To determine applications to vary premises licence/club premises 
certificate by way of a minor variation in all cases. 
 

To suspend a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate, for 
non-payment of the Annual Fee. 
 

To revoke a Premises Licence, for non-payment of the Annual Fee. 
 
 

To cancel a Societies Registration under the Act. 
 

To determine applications to vary the designated premises 
supervisor in cases where there is no Police objection. 
 

To determine all requests to be removed as a designated premises 
supervisor. 
 

To determine applications for the transfer of a premises licence 
where no Police objection is made. 
 

To determine applications for interim authorities where no Police 
objection is made. 
 

To determine whether a representation is irrelevant, frivolous, 
vexatious etc. 
 

To make representations as a Responsible Authority, where 
appropriate, in response to applications. 
 

To classify films which have not already been classified by the 
British Board of Film Classification (delegated to the Commercial 
Services Team Leader in the absence of the Public Protection 
ManagerHead of Public Protection). 
 

To institute, defend or participate in any action or legal proceedings 
in respect of any matter relating to the functions (including, where 
not delegated to any other officer, the service of any notice or order 
or the exercise of any power of entry) in any case where such action 
is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Licensing Committee 
or any officer acting under delegated powers in consultation with the 
Director of Resources. 
 

Powers under the Gambling Act 2005 
 

To act as authorised officer for the purposes of s.304 and Part 15 of 
the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

ManagerHead of 
Public Protection 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commercial Services 
Team Leader has 

Page 173

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 22 

 

To determine applications for premises licences where no 
representations have been received or any representations made 
have been withdrawn. 
 

To determine applications for a variation to a licence where no 
representations have been received or any representations made 
have been withdrawn. 
 

To determine applications for the transfer of a licence where no 
representations have been received from the Commission. 
 

To determine applications for a provisional statement where no 
representations have been received or any representations made 
have been withdrawn. 
 

To determine applications for club gaming/club machine permits 
where no representations have been received or any 
representations made have been withdrawn. 
 

To determine applications for other permits (up to 4 machines). 
 

To cancel licensed premises gaming machine permits. 
 

To consider any Temporary Use Notice. 
 

To institute, defend or participate in any action or legal proceedings 
in respect of any matter relating to the functions (including, where 
not delegated to any other officer, the service of any notice or order 
or the exercise of any power of entry) in any case where such action 
is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Licensing Committee 
or any officer acting under delegated powers in consultation with the 
Director of Resources. 
 

Other Delegations 
 

Additional Meetings of Licensing Regulatory and Licensing 
Committees/Sub-Committees 
 

The Public Protection ManagerHead of Public Protection is 
authorised to arrange special meetings of the Licensing Regulatory 
and Licensing Committees if appropriate in each cycle. 
 

Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 

To serve direction under s.77 of the Criminal Justice and Public 
Order Act 1994 on persons residing on land in vehicles to leave the 
land and remove vehicles and authority, in consultation with the 
Head of Legal and Governance, to issue proceedings under s.77 
and/or s.78 if the direction is not complied with. 

 

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
 

To exercise the Council’s functions and enforcement powers under 
the 2014 Act, including:- 

authority to act in the 
absence of the Public 
Protection 
ManagerHead of 
Public Protection 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 174

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 23 

 

 

Issuing community protection notices. 
 

To exercise any function including the service of any notice or order, 
the exercise of any powers of entry and the taking of any other 
action or proceedings under any relevant legislation or otherwise 
(after consultation with the Director of Resources in respect of any 
proposal to institute court proceedings) in respect of matters relating 
to: 
 

1. contaminated land 
 

2. the control of pollution or the management of air quality 
 

3. the inspection of the authority's area to detect any statutory 
nuisance and the investigation of any complaint as to the 
existence of a statutory nuisance including the service of any 
abatement notices.  
 

4. functions relating to health and safety including, without 
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the service of any 
Improvement or Prohibition Notices,  
 

5. functions relating to smoke free premises, places and vehicles 
for which the Licensing Regulatory Committee is responsible, 
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the power to 
enforce offences relating to the display of no smoking signs; 
offences relating to smoking in smoke free places; offence of 
failing to prevent smoking in smoke free places; and, power to 
transfer enforcement functions to another enforcement authority 
all such functions being pursuant to the Health Act 2006, and the 
Smoke-free (premises and enforcement) Regulations 2006 and 
any other ancillary Regulations. 

 

To deal with all functions relating to health and safety under any 
statutory provision within the meaning of Part 1 of the Health and 
Safety at Work Act 1974, to the extent that those functions are 
discharged otherwise than in the authority’s capacity as employer. 
 

All Environmental Health Officers employed by the Council shall be 
appointed as Inspectors under Health and Safety at Work Act etc. 
1974 and be empowered to serve Improvement and Prohibition 
Notices and to institute proceedings for an offence under the same 
legislation. 
 

To take action in accordance with the powers contained in:  
 

1. The Public Health Act 1936, Section 84 and 85 (Cleansing or 
destruction of filthy or verminous premises, clothing and 
articles),  
 

2. The Public Health Act 1961, Section 37 (Disinfection of 
verminous articles offered for sale), 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environmental 
Protection and  
Public Health Team 
Leader unless 
express delegation 
elsewhere 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commercial Services 
Team Leader unless 
express delegation 
elsewhere. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 175

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 24 

 

 

3. The Public Health (Control of Diseases) Act 1984, Sections 48 
(removal of dead bodies), 61 and 62 (powers of entry), 
 

4. The Health Protection (Notification) Regulations 2010, 
Regulations 2 (Duty to notify suspected disease, infection of 
contamination in patients) and 3 (Duty to notify suspected 
disease, infection or contamination in dead bodies), 
 
 

5. Public Health (Ships) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 
2007 
 

6. Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 
 

7. Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 
 

8. Housing Act 1985 
 

9. Building Act 1984 
 

10. Public Health Act 1936 
 

11. Public Health Act 1961 
 

12. Control of Pollution Act 1974 
 

13. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 

14. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 
 

15. Public Health (Control of Diseases) Act 1984 
 

16. Environmental Protection Act 1990 
 

17. Clean Air Act 1993 
 

18. Zoo Licensing Act 1981 
 

Ship Water Sampling Fees 
 

To review the setting of fees for water sampling. 
 

Page 176

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 25 

 

 

 Section F 

Property Services Group ManagerHead of Programme Management 
and Climate Change 

Delegations 
Exercising of 
Other Delegations  

 
Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy or other forms of 
assistance as apply at the time 
 
(i) To draw up detailed procedures for the provision and 
authorisation of agreed forms of assistance; and  

 
(ii) To authorise Disabled Facilities Grants, Barrow Disability Minor 
Works Grants and Barrow Disability Major Works Grants.(delegation 
to transfer to Head of Assets with effect from 1.4.22) 

 
(iii)Authorisation of ECO flex declarations 
 
Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy/Housing Act 
2004 
 
 
Delegated authority in relation to Mandatory Licensing of Houses in 
Multiple Occupation and taking enforcement action under the 
Housing Health and Safety Rating Scheme:- 
 

o Making, serving, varying and revoking of Prohibition Orders, 
Improvement Notices and Hazard Awareness Notices; 
 

o Powers to take emergency remedial action and to make 
emergency Prohibition Orders; 
 

o Powers of entry and seeking warrants to enter; 
 

o Making charges under Section 49; 
 

o Recovery of Section 49 charges under Section 50; 
 

o Granting, varying and revoking of HMO Licences; 
 
o Powers to make requisitions for information s.16 (Local 

Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 

 
o Approval of remedial notices and penalty charge notices, and 

other notices as required by the Smoke and CO Alarm 
Regulations 2015, and to approve in writing officers to act as 
“authorised persons” who can take remedial action; 
 

 

 

Page 177

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 26 

 

o Authorisation of notices of intent under the Redress Schemes 
for Letting Agency Work etc. Regulations 2014, and if no 
representations or objections are raised to authorise final 
notices. 

 

o Authorisation of the service of remedial notices, remedial action 
and notices to recover costs under the Electrical Safety 
Standards in the Private Rented Sector (England) Regulations 
2020 

 

o Authorisation of compliance notices under the Energy Efficiency 
(Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2015 (as amended) 
 
 

To agree that the decision and all reasonable enquiries to facilitate 
that decision to grant, refuse, revoke or vary a licence and the length 
of licence and charge for a licence in relation to Mandatory Licensing 
of Houses in Multiple Occupation and, that any person who is not 
satisfied with any decision may take the matter before the 
Residential Property Tribunal in the manner prescribed by the Act. 
 

Page 178

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 27 

 

 

 Section G 

Collections and Exhibitions Manager 

Delegations 
Exercising of 
Other Delegations  

 

Deaccessioning 
 
To agree to the under-mentioned deaccessioning:- 
 
1.   Where the value is less than £1,500; and 
 
2.  The object is not related to the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness; 

and/or  
 
3.  Does not fit in the Collections Development Policy (which has 

been approved by the Executive Committee). 
 
Where there is a distinct collection such as geology collection, 
archaeology collection or natural history collection, then that cannot 
be deaccessioned without the Executive Committee’s approval. 
 

 

 

 

 Section H 

Head of Asset Management  

Delegations 
Exercising of 
Other Delegations  

 
(With effect from 1.4.22) 
To authorise Disabled Facilities Grants, Barrow Disability Minor 
Works Grants and Barrow Disability Major Works Grants 
 
 
Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 

To serve direction under s.77 of the Criminal Justice and Public 
Order Act 1994 on persons residing on land in vehicles to leave the 
land and remove vehicles and authority, in consultation with the 
Head of Legal and Governance, to issue proceedings under s.77 
and/or s.78 if the direction is not complied with 
 
 

 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 28 

 

Part 4 – Appointments of Proper Officer & Deputy Proper Officer 

1 Legislative background 

 
1.1 Legislation requires the Council to appoint specific officers and to identify officers 

for particular responsibilities. 

1.2 The Council has appointed the following Proper Officers under the enactments 

shown in the table below. 

1.3 The Deputy Proper Officer is also authorised to act. 

Page 180

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 29 

 

DESIGNATION OF PROPER OFFICERS 

 
The following are the Proper Officers of the Council under the enactments shown below. The 
alternative Proper Officer is also authorised to act. 

 

Section of the Local Government Act 1972 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.13(3) - Parish Trustee Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s.83 (1) to (4) - Witness and 
receipt of Declarations of 
Acceptance of Office   

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive or 
Democratic Services 
Manager 

s.84  Receipt of Declaration of 
Resignation of Office 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.88(2) - Convening of 
meeting of Council to fill 
casual vacancy in the office of 
Chairman 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.89(1)(b) - Receipt of notices 
of pecuniary interest 

Returning Officer  

s.96(1) - Receipt of notices of 
pecuniary interest 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s.96(2) - Keeping record of 
disclosure of pecuniary 
interest under Section 94 and 
notices under Section 96(1) 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s. 100B(2) - Circulation of 
papers and reports 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.100B(5) - Withholding of 
reports containing exempt 
information   

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.100B(7)(c) - Supply of 
papers to the press 

Democratic Services Officer Chief Executive 

s.100C(2) - Summaries of 
minutes 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.100D - Inspection of 
background papers 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.100F - Members right to 
papers 

Democratic Services Manager Chief Executive 

s.115(2) - Receipt of money 
due from officers 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.146(1)(a) and (b) - 
Declarations and service with 
regard to securities 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

Section of the Local Government Act 1972 

Proper officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.151 - Responsibility for the 
proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.191 - Functions with respect 
to ordnance survey 

Director of People and Place Development Services 
Manager 

s.210(6) and (7) - Charity 
functions of holders of offices 

Chief Executive Director of Resources 

Page 181

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 30 

 

with existing authorities 
transferred to holders of 
equivalent offices with new 
authorities or, if there is no 
such office, to Proper Officer 

s.212(1) - Local Registrar for 
Land Charges 

Director of People and Place Development Services 
Manager 

s.225(1) - Proper Officer 
function - deposit of 
documents 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

s.228(3) - Accounts of any 
Proper Officer to be open to 
inspection by any Member of 
the Authority 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.229(5) - Certification of 
Photographic copies of 
Documents 

Any member of Management 
Team and Democratic 
Services Manager 

 

s.234 - Authentication of 
Documents 

Officer authorised in that 
connection by a general 
delegation or otherwise, or the 
Monitoring Officer in the 
absence of such authority 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 

s.236(9) - To send copies of 
byelaw for Parish records 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.236(10) - To send copies of 
byelaws to the County Council 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.238 - Certification of byelaws Any member of Management 
Team 

 

s.248 - Keeping of Roll of 
Freeman 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

Schedule 12, Para 4 (2)(b) - 
Signature of summonses to 
Council Meetings 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

Schedule 12, Para 4(3) - 
Receipt of notice regarding 
address to which summonses 
to meetings are to be sent 

Democratic Services Manager  

Schedule 14, Para 25(7) - 
Certifying resolutions applying 
or dis-applying provisions of 
Public Health Acts 1875-1961 

Chief Executive Director of Resources 

Local Government Act 1974 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.30 - To give public notice of 
reports by the Local 
Commissioner 

Monitoring Officer Officer nominated by the 
Monitoring Officer as 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Representation of the People Acts 1983 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.8 - Electoral Registration 
Officer 

Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)  or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

Page 182

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 31 

 

s.35 - Returning Officer Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer  
(Democratic Services 
Manager) or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.81 - To receive returns as to 
election expenses 

Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)  or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.52(3) - To act as Deputy 
Electoral Registration Officer 

Democratic Services Manager  

Local Government Finance Act 1988 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer  Alternative Proper Officer 

s.114 - Duty to report etc. 
 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.116 - To notify the Council’s 
Auditor of a Council meeting to 
be held under s.15 (meeting to 
consider any report of the 
DFO under s.114) 

Director of Resources Officer nominated as 
Deputy s.151 Officer by the 
s. 151 Officer 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.4 - Head of Paid Service 
 

Chief Executive  

s.5 - Monitoring Officer Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

s. 19 and regulations made 
thereunder - Notices of 
Members’ Interests. 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

s.2 and s.3 - Preparation and 
deposit of politically restricted 
posts and issue of certificate in 
respect of politically restricted 
posts 

Democratic Services Manager Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Party Wall Act 1996 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s.10(8) - Appointing Officer 
 
 

Development Services 
Manager (Building Control) 

Director of People and 
Place 

Public Health Legislation   

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s. 74 - Public Health (Control 
of Diseases) Act 1984 and 
Health Protection Regulations 
2010 

Dr. John Astbury Grainne Nixon 
Dr. Nicola Schinaia 
and other appropriate 
persons from UK Health 
Security Agency (UKHSA) 
as notified by the Monitoring 
Officer 

Public Health Act 1936        
s. 84 and 85 - (Cleansing or 
destruction of filthy or 

As above As above 

Page 183

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 32 

 

verminous premises, clothing 
and articles) 
 

Public Health Act 1961        
s.37 - (Disinfection of 
verminous articles offered for 
sale) 
 

As above As above 

Sections 48, 59 and 61-62 
Public Health (Control of 
Disease) Act 1984; The 
Health Protection 
(Notification) Regulations 
2010 
 

Regulations 2 (Duty to notify 
suspected disease, infection of 
contamination in patients) and 
3 and 6 (receipt and disclosure 
of notification of suspected 
notifiable disease, infection or 
contamination in patients and 
dead persons) 
 

As above As above 

Legal responsibilities and 
duties of local authorities   
in connection with 
communicable disease 
control and the protection  
of public health are derived 
from the provisions of  
 

    The Public Health (Control 
of Disease) Act 1984 (as 
amended by the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008; 
 

    Health and Social Care Act 
2008; 
 

    The Health Protection 
(Local Authority Powers 
Regulations 2010; and 
 

    The Health Protection (Part 
2A Orders) Regulations 2010 
to make notifications and 
apply controls as required 

As above As above 

Local Government Act 2000 and Regulations made thereunder 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

 Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Page 184

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 33 

 

Freedom of Information Act 2000 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

s. 36 the ‘qualified person’ Monitoring Officer Chief Executive (in the 
absence of the Monitoring 
Officer) 
 

Miscellaneous   

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

Section 41 Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 
Certifying true copies of 
minutes 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Section 321(3) Highways Act 
1980 
Certifying copies of approved 
plans 

Director of People and Place  

Section 2 Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 
Lists of protected buildings 

Development Services 
Manager (Planning and 
Enforcement) 

 

Section 4 Housing Act 2004 
 

Property Services 
ManagerHead of Programme 
Management and Climate 
Change 

 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper Officer 

Officers authorised to issue 
authorisations to carry out 
directed surveillance or to use 
covert human intelligence 
sources under Part II of the 
Regulations of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 

Head of Legal and 
Governance 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 
(including Juvenile or 
Vulnerable Persons CHIS or 
the acquisition of confidential 
information) 
 

The Director of People and 
Place is the RIPA Monitoring 
Officer 

Director of Resources 

Service of Improvement and 
Prohibition Notices under the 
Health and Safety at Work 
etc. Act 1974 

Public Protection 
ManagerHead of Public 
Protection and all 
Environmental Health Officers 
having satisfied the Council as 
to their competence. 

Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Senior Information Risk Officer Director of Resources Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 
 

Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 Chapter II 

Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 

Page 185

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 34 

 

Designated Person (Access 
and Disclosure of 
Communications Data) 

time 

The Money Laundering 
Regulations 2007 

Director of Resources Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014 
Section 104(3) 
Point of Contact 

Monitoring Officer Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

Data Protection – To act as 
the Council’s designated Data 
Protection Officer as required 
by the Data Protection Act 
2018, s.69 to undertake the 
duties set out in Section 71 of 
the Data Protection Act 2018 
and Article 39 of the General 
Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) EU 2016/679. 

Head of Legal and 
Governance  

Such other persons as may 
be appointed from time to 
time 

 
 
 

Page 186

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(2) Version 9 (October 2021) Page 35 

 

 

Page 187

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee – 12 January 2022 

Full Council - 25 January 2022 

Code of Conduct, and Guidance Revision 
 

   

Report from:   Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    Not applicable 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  That Council considers the Member Code of Conduct as reviewed through 

Cumbria Monitoring Officers, together with revisions to the guidance for adoption. 

 

2.0 Recommendations  

 

 Executive Committee is asked to recommend the following to Council: 

 

(1) It is recommended that Council adopts the LGA Code of Conduct (as 

amended) as attached to this report;  

 

(2) That the registration of “Other Registerable Interests” be amended to 

include “unpaid directorships”; and 

 

(3) Note the revised Guidance attached as Appendix 2. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Following a review of the Council’s standards arrangements, Audit and 

Governance Committee received an update with regard to the model LGA Code 

of Conduct which had been considered by the Cumbria Monitoring Officers Group.  

The LGA code had been published following Council’s last review of the code. 

 

3.2 As Members are aware best practice recommendations from the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life set out a number of recommendations, many of which 

require changes to legislation and so are the responsibility of central government 

to implement, however a number were for local authorities to implement. 

 

3.3 One of the recommendations was that the Local Government Association (“LGA”) 

should create an updated Model Code of Conduct.  When Audit and Governance 

and Council considered the Council’s code back in 2020 the LGA were still working 

Page 189

Agenda Item 14



on this and the LGA Model Code was published in December 2020.  The Cumbria 

Monitoring Officers have worked together on the Model Code to make appropriate 

amendments (the Model Code is promoted as a template to be amended for local 

circumstances). 

 

3.4 Since the LGA Code was published a revised version was issued in July 2021 and 

the tweaks are incorporated into this version.   

 

3.5 The Model Code of Conduct with suggested amendments was considered by the 

Audit and Governance Committee at its meeting on 7 December 2021 and a clean 

version is shown as Appendix 1 of the Report which is being recommended by the 

Committee for approval.  The Committee considered whether they wished to see 

unpaid directorships added to the other registrable interests which the Council has 

said should be declared and if agreed then the interest form would be updated to 

reflect this. 

 

3.6  The Guidance for Members has also been revised to take account of the new Code 

and this is attached as Appendix 2. 

 

 Recommendations 

 

3.13 Members are requested to consider the LGA Model Code as amended by the 

Cumbrian Monitoring Officers, and accompanying guidance for adoption. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 All Borough councillors and Parish/Town Clerks were sent a copy of the revised 

draft on 11 October 2021 and invited to submit any comments to the Audit and 

Governance Committee. None were received. The Independent Person has also 

been consulted. 

 

 Audit and Governance Committee on 7 December 2021 considered the revised 

code and recommend it to full Council for adoption. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not to accept the revised Code and continue with the existing Code - the Code is 

recommended for consistency across the County. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Ethical standards underpin the governance controls of the Council. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no finance or resource implications arising from this report. 

 

  

Page 190

Agenda Item 14



Legal  

7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  Any changes to standards 

arrangements must be in accordance with the relevant legislative requirements. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – there are no issues to 
raise. 

 

Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

That the Council is failing in its 

standards arrangements 

Poor standards of 

behaviour – reputational  

Monitor and review 

arrangements on a 

regular basis 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  LGA Model Code of Conduct as adapted for adoption 

2 Updated Guidance on Code of Conduct 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Background documents 

available 

 

 

1. Local Government 

Ethical Standards – a 

Review by the 

Committee on 

standards in Public 

Life 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-

standards-report 

2. Barrow Borough 

Council existing 

Member Code of 

Conduct 

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/853

9.pdf 

 

 

Page 191

Agenda Item 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8539.pdf
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8539.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1  

Appendix 1 
 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Councillor Code of Conduct 2022 

 
 

Page 193

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



2  

 
 

Definitions 

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or co-opted 

member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is defined in 

the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority 

but who 

a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or; 

b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint 

sub- committee of the authority; 

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of 

that committee or sub-committee”. 

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils, 

district councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and rescue 

authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards, combined 

authorities and National Park authorities. 

 
Purpose of the Code of Conduct 

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the 

behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out 

the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect 

you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of local 

government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all councillors and your 

specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The LGA encourages the use of 

support, training and mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The 

fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of 

councillor and local government. 

 

General principles of councillor conduct 

Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services, 

including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers; should uphold 

the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles. 

Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed 

specifically for the role of councillor. 

In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions: 

 I act with integrity and honesty

 I act lawfully

 I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and

 I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of 

councillor.

In undertaking my role: 

 I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community

 I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any 

person

 I avoid conflicts of interest

Page 194

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2


3  

 I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and

 I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local 

authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

 

Application of the Code of Conduct 

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of 

the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to 

apply to you until you cease to be a councillor. 

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor 
which may include when: 

 you misuse your position as a councillor

 Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with 

knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor;

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including: 
 

 at face-to-face meetings

 at online or telephone meetings

 in written communication

 in verbal communication

 in non-verbal communication

 in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and 

comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times 

when acting as a councillor. 

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of 

Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any 

matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are 

encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring 

Officer. 

 
 

Standards of councillor conduct 

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required 

of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may be 

made against you, which may result in action being taken. 

Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be 

followed. 

  

Page 195

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



4  

General Conduct 

1. Respect 

As a councillor: 

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect. 
 

1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner 

organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and 

respect the role they play. 

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. 

Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, you 

can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a 

robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or 

organisations to personal attack. 

 

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and 

offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors. 

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the 

public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any 

conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, the 

relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where 

action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority 

employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillor- 

officer protocol. 

 

2. Bullying, harassment and 

discrimination As a councillor: 

2.1 I do not bully any person. 
 

2.2 I do not harass any person. 

 

2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any 

person. 

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as 

offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power 

through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be 

a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in 

virtual meetings, emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events 

and may not always be obvious or noticed by others. 

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes 

alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at 

least two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications 

and contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in 

any reasonable person. 

 

Page 196

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



5  

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected 

characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's 

identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, 

marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 

sexual orientation. 

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central 

role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance 

and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality 

across public services. 

 

3. Impartiality of officers of the council 

As a councillor: 

 
3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of 

anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority. 

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless they 

are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would 

undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example, 

their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have 

written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or 

alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional integrity. 

4. Confidentiality and access to information 

As a councillor: 

4.1 I do not disclose information: 

a. given to me in confidence by anyone 

b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be 

aware, is of a confidential nature, unless 

i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

ii. I am required by law to do so; 

iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 

obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 

party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 

person; or 

iv. the disclosure is: 

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and 

2. made in good faith and in compliance with the 

reasonable requirements of the local authority; and 

3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its 

release. 

 

4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a 

councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members, 

my employer or my business interests. 

 

4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by 

law. 

Page 197

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



6  

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed 

materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should 

work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that discussions, 

documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in 

a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information 

relating to ongoing negotiations. 

 

5. Disrepute 

As a councillor: 

5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute. 

As a councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your 

actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the 

public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other 

councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s confidence in your or your 

local authority’s ability to discharge your/it’s functions. For example, behaviour that is 

considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute. 

You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to 

constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by 

the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct. 

6. Use of position 

As a councillor: 

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or 

disadvantage of myself or anyone else. 

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities, 

responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others. 

However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or 

others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly. 

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities 

As a councillor: 

7.1 I do not misuse council resources. 
 

7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising 

their use by others: 

a. act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and 

b. ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes. 

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in 

carrying out your duties as a councillor. 

Examples include: 

 office support 

 stationery 

 equipment such as phones, and computers 

 transport 

 access and use of local authority buildings and rooms. 

Page 198

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



7  

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and 

are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with 

the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies 

regarding their use. 

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct 

As a Councillor: 

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority. 
 

8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or 

determination. 

 

8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be 

involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings. 

 

8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have 

breached the Code of Conduct. 

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to 

have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local 

authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local 

authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring 

Officer. 

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority 

9. Interests 

As a councillor: 

9.1 I register and disclose my interests. 

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and 

maintain a register of interests of members of the authority. 

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow 

councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The register 

is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register 

also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held 

accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should 

disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think 

that a potential conflict might arise. It is also  important that the public know about any 

interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking 

part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This 

helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained. 

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set 

out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011. 

Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in 

doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer. 

Page 199

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



8  

10. Gifts and hospitality 

As a councillor: 

10.1 I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which 

could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable 

suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to 

acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons 

who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other 

significant advantage. 

 

10.2 I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt. 

 

10.3 I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality 

with an estimated value of at least £50 that I have been offered 

but have refused to accept. 

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should 

exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably 

believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always 

be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a 

refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must 

ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality 

which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends 

and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and 

hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your 

Monitoring Officer for guidance. 

Page 200

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 10 of 17  

Appendices 

Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life 

The principles are: 

Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 

organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not 

act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, 

their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests and relationships. 

Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using 

the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 

must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 

Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful 

reasons for so doing. 

Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 

actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor 

behaviour wherever it occurs. 

Page 201

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 10 of 17 
 

Appendix B  

Registering interests 

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you 
must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out 
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register 
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2 
(Other Registerable Interests). 

 
“Disclosable pecuniary interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you 
are aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 

 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 

 

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 

28 days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a 

registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the 

councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to 

violence or intimidation. 

 

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer 

with the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring 

Officer agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register. 

 

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the 

interest, not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not 

remain in the room/meeting unless you have been granted a dispensation.  In 

addition, you may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 

allowed to speak and having spoken you must leave the room/meeting. If it is a 

‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that 

you have an interest. Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to 

enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 

pecuniary interest. 

 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is 
being considered by you as an Executive member in exercise of your executive 
function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 
steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal 
with it 

  

Page 202

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 11 of 17 
 

Disclosure of Other Registrable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other 
Registrable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. If you 
have such an interest you must consider whether a reasonable member of the 
public, knowing all the facts, would think the interest such that it may influence the 
way you vote.  If the ordinary person would think that the interest may influence 
your vote then you should not participate in the matter.  In these circumstances you 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 
the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the 
matter. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the 
interest 

 
Disclosure of Non- Registrable Interests 

 
7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest 

or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a 

financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose 

the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 

allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion 

or vote on the matter unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 

‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included 

under Other Registrable Interests set out in Table 2  

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you may participate 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied: 

 

9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects your financial interest or 
well-being so that a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it may affect your view of the wider public interest. 

a. you may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 

allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any 

discussion or vote on the matter. 

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
10. Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have 

made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure that 
any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your 
interest. 

 
  

Page 203

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 12 of 17 
 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the 

Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 

 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
council) made to the councillor during the 
previous 12-month period for expenses 
incurred by him/her in carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards 
his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which 
such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of which such person  is a director* or 
a body that such person has a beneficial 
interest in the securities of*) and the council 
— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be 
provided or works are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, 
interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or 
civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ 
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Page 204

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


23.12.2020 Page 13 of 17 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the council; and 

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, 
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a 
beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a 
body where— 

(a) that body (to the councillor’s 
knowledge) has a place of business or 
land in the area of the council; and 

(b) either— 

(i) ) the total nominal value of the 
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in 
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or 
civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners has a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial 

and provident society. 

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 

collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 

Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 

building society. 

  

 

Page 205

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 14 of 17 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 

 

 

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is 
likely to affect: 

 

a) Any unpaid directorships 
b) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you 

are nominated or appointed by your authority 
 

c) any body 

(i) exercising functions of a public nature 

(ii) any body directed to charitable purposes or 

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or trade union) 

of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management 

Page 206

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



October21 Page 1 
 

 

GUIDANCE ON CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
This document has been produced by the Cumbria Monitoring Officers to offer guidance on 
the Code of Conduct for Members. The code, amended from time to time to reflect current 
guidance, applies to all members and co-opted members of the Council. 
 
The Member code does not apply to the actions of the Council as a whole, or to the conduct 
of its officers and employees.   
 
Ultimately, it is the members’ responsibility to take specific advice from the Monitoring Officer 
where appropriate and to make a decision as to the most suitable course of action. 
  
Code of Conduct 
 
The Code of Conduct (“the Code”) is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations 
that are placed on Members, but it is the responsibility of individual members to comply with 
the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply to them from 
time to time. 
 
The Code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to the code which 
define the standards that members should uphold.  A failure to act in accordance with these 
general principles may amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct. For example, by placing 
yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned, your conduct may 
be conduct which could “bringing the Council or your office as a member of the Council into 
disrepute”.  
 
When does the Code apply to you? 
 
The Code applies to you whenever you act in your official capacity as a Member or co-opted 
member of the Authority.  A co-opted member is a person who is not a member of the Council 
but who is either a member of any committee or sub-committee of the Council, or a member 
of, and represents the Council on any joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Council 
and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at that meeting of that 
committee or sub-committee. 
 
For the purposes of the Code, a “meeting” is a meeting of the Council, any of its committees, 
sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees.      
 
General Obligations under the Code  
 
You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material 
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a close associate, an employer or business 
carried on by you. 
 
For example, your behaviour would be improper if you sought to further your private interests 
through your position as a member. 
 
You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside individuals 
or organisations that may influence you in the performance of your official duties. 
 
It would not be appropriate to accept favours, gifts or hospitality from someone that may, at a 
later date, require something from the Council that you are in a position to influence.  For 
example, you may be offered a discount by a business in the area which subsequently applies 

Page 207

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 2 
 

 

for a planning permission and/or a licence.  You may be on the relevant committee dealing 
with the application and, therefore, be in a difficult position. 
 
You must not disclose any information given to you as a Member in breach of any 
confidence. 
 
There may be circumstances where you are required to do so by law but you should seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about this.  
 
You must not disclose confidential information, or information which you believe to be of a 
confidential nature, except in any of the following circumstances: 
 

• You have the consent of the person authorised to give it. 
• You are required by law to do so. 
• The disclosure is made to a third party for the purposes of obtaining professional 

advice (for example, your lawyer or other professional adviser) provided that person 
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person. 

• The disclosure is in the public interest.  This is only justified in limited circumstances, 
when all of the following four requirements are met: 

1. the disclosure must be reasonable 
2. the disclosure must be in the public interest 
3. the disclosure must be made in good faith 
4. the disclosure must be made in compliance with any reasonable  requirements 

of your authority 
 

In relation to the disclosure of confidential information in the public interest, the four 
requirements to be met are outlined in more detail below. 
 
1. The first requirement, that the disclosure must be reasonable, requires you to consider 
matters such as: 
 

• Whether you believe that the information disclosed, and any allegation contained in 
it, is substantially true. If you do not believe this, the disclosure is unlikely to be 
reasonable. 

• Whether you make the disclosure for personal gain. If you are paid to disclose the 
information, the disclosure is unlikely to be reasonable. 

• The identity of the person to whom the disclosure is made. It may be reasonable to 
disclose information to the police or to an appropriate regulator. It is less likely to be 
reasonable for you to disclose the information to the world at large through the media. 

• The extent of the information disclosed. The inclusion of unnecessary detail, and in 
particular, private matters such as addresses or telephone numbers, is likely to render 
the disclosure unreasonable. 

• The seriousness of the matter. The more serious the matter disclosed, the more likely 
it is that the disclosure will be reasonable. 

• The timing of the disclosure. If the matter to which the disclosure relates has already 
occurred, and is unlikely to occur again, the disclosure may be less likely to be 
reasonable than if the matter is continuing, or is likely to recur. 

• Whether the disclosure involves your authority failing in a duty of confidence owed to 
another person. 

 
2. The second requirement, that the disclosure must be in the public interest, needs to involve 
one or more of the following matters or something of comparable seriousness, that has either 
happened in the past, is currently happening, or is likely to happen in the future: 
 

Page 208

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 3 
 

 

(a) A criminal offence is committed. 
(b) Your authority or some other person fails to comply with any legal obligation to which 
they are subject. 
(c) A miscarriage of justice occurs. 
(d) The health or safety of any individual is in danger. 
(e) The environment is likely to be damaged. 
(f) That information tending to show any matter falling within (a) to (e) is deliberately 
concealed. 

 
3. The third requirement, that the disclosure is made in good faith, will not be met if you act 
with an ulterior motive, for example, to achieve a party political advantage or to settle a score 
with a political opponent. 
 
4. The fourth requirement, that you comply with the reasonable requirements of your authority, 
means that before making the disclosure you must comply with your authority’s policies or 
protocols on matters such as whistle-blowing and confidential information. You must first raise 
your concerns through the appropriate channels set out in such policies or protocols. 
 
In summary, to decide whether the disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest, you 
may need to conduct a balancing exercise weighing up the public interest in maintaining 
confidentiality against any countervailing public interest favouring disclosure. This will require 
a careful focus on how confidential the information is, on any potentially harmful consequences 
of its disclosure, and on any factors which may justify its disclosure despite these potential 
consequences. 
 
In some situations, it is extremely unlikely that a disclosure can be justified in the public 
interest. These will include where the disclosure amounts to a criminal offence, or where the 
information disclosed is protected by legal professional privilege. 
 
You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing the Council, or your office as a member of the Council, into disrepute. 
 
You must not bring your office or authority into disrepute whilst acting in your official capacity. 
 
As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary 
members of the public.  You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact 
on your office or your authority.  Dishonest and deceitful behaviour in your role as a member 
may bring your authority into disrepute, as may conduct in your private life which results in a 
criminal conviction, such as dishonest, threatening or violent behaviour. 
 
 
You must treat others with respect and promote equality by not discriminating 
unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their 
sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation or disability.  You should respect the 
impartiality and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees. 
 
Respect  
You must treat others with respect. In politics, rival groupings are common, either in formal 
political parties or more informal alliances.  It is expected that each will campaign for their 
ideas, and they may also seek to discredit the politics and actions of their opponents.  Criticism 
of ideas and opinion is part of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to failing to 
treat someone with respect. 
 
Ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be subject to 
unreasonable or excessive personal attacks.  This particularly applies to dealing with the 

Page 209

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 4 
 

 

public and officers.  Chairs of meetings are expected to apply the rules of debate and 
procedure rules or standing orders to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct. 
 
Whilst there may be unreasonable demands on members, members should, as far as 
possible, treat people courteously and with consideration.  Rude and offensive behaviour 
lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in its elected representatives. 
 
Equality 
 
You must not do anything which may cause your authority to breach any equality laws. You 
must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to any of the prohibited forms of 
discrimination, or do anything which hinders your authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties 
under equality laws.  Such conduct may cause your authority to breach the law, and you may 
find yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the code of 
conduct. 
 
Bullying 
 
You should not bully any person.  As an elected Member you are in a position of authority and 
power over Council employees and others. Bullying if offensive, intimidating, malicious or 
insulting behaviour involving the misuse of power that can make a person feel vulnerable, 
upset, humiliated, undermined or threatened.  Power does not always mean being in a position 
of authority, but can include both personal strength and the power to coerce through fear or 
intimidation. 
 
Bullying can take the form of physical, verbal and non-verbal conduct.  Bullying may include, 
by way of example: 
 

(a) Physical or psychological threats; 
(b) Overbearing and intimidating levels of supervision/instruction; 
(c) Inappropriate derogatory remarks about someone’s performance; 

 
Legitimate, reasonable and constructive criticism of a worker’s performance or behaviour, or 
reasonable instructions given to workers in the course of their employment, will not amount to 
bullying on their own. 
 
Harassment 
 
You should not harass any person. Harassment is any unwanted physical, verbal or non-
verbal conduct that has the purpose or effect of violating a person’s dignity or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for them.  A single 
incident can amount to harassment. 
 
It also includes treating someone less favourably because they have submitted or refused to 
submit to such behaviour in the past.  
 
Unlawful harassment may involve conduct of a sexual nature (sexual harassment), or it may 
be related to age, disability, gender reassignment, marital or civil partner status, pregnancy or 
maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief, sex or sexual 
orientation.  Harassment is unacceptable even if it does not fall within any of these categories. 
 
Harassment may include, for example: 

(a) Unwanted physical conduct or “horseplay”, including touching, pinching, pushing and 
grabbing; 

Page 210

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 5 
 

 

(b) Continued suggestions for social activity after it has been made clear that such 
suggestions are unwelcome; 

(c) Sending or displaying material that is pornographic or that some people may find 
offensive (including e-mails, text messages, video clips and images sent by mobile 
phones or posted on the internet); 

(d) Unwelcome sexual advances or suggestive behaviour (which the harasser may 
perceive as harmless); 

(e) Racist, sexist, homophobic or ageist jokes, or derogatory or stereotypical remarks 
about a particular ethnic or religious group or gender; 

(f) Outing or threating to out someone as gay or lesbian; 
(g) Offensive e-mails, text messages or social media content; or 
(h) Mocking, mimicking or belittling a person’s disability. 

 
A person may be harassed even if they were not the intended “target”.  For example, a person 
may be harassed by racist jokes about a different ethnic group if the jokes create an offensive 
environment. 
 
 
Impartiality and integrity of officers of the authority 
 
You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the Authority’s statutory officers and its 
other employees. 
 
You should not approach or pressure anyone who works for, or on behalf of the authority to 
carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way.  They must be neutral and should not be 
coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality.  For example, you 
should not get officers to help you prepare party political material, or to help you with matters 
relating to your private business.   
 
Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for example, their reasons 
for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have written, you 
must not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that 
report, if doing so would prejudice their professional integrity.  
 
When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as making public 
appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits 
on merit. 
 
As an elected Member of the Council you are responsible for administering resources on 
behalf of the public of the area that you serve.  You should administer these resources fairly 
and in accordance with the law.  It is inappropriate for the Council’s resources or powers to be 
used in such a way that the authority and its Members be left open to accusations that in 
appropriate influence played a part, for example, “it’s not what you know, it’s who you know!” 
 
You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully with 
whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 
 
This requirement is linked to carrying out all duties in a fair and transparent manner.  Members 
are able to be held to account for their actions and, this being the case, you must be open to 
cooperate with any legitimate scrutiny that is to be applied. 
 
You must be open as possible about your decisions and actions and the decisions and 
actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for those decisions 
and actions. 
 

Page 211

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 6 
 

 

The law requires that Members give reasons for their decisions.  This is so that the public we 
serve are able to understand why we have taken a course of action and, if necessary, exercise 
any right of challenge that is open to them. 
 
You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary interests and any 
registrable interests, that relate to your public duties and must take steps to resolve 
any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest, including registering and 
declaring interest in a matter which conforms to the procedures within the code. 
 
The Code of Conduct contains a scheme for the registration of interests.  It exists to support 
openness and transparency; the public are able to see where you may have an interest.  
Secondly, the scheme of registration exists to protect individual Members against accusations 
of a conflict of interest, etc.  Lastly, the registration of disclosable pecuniary interests is 
required by law. 
 
You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 
authority, that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes (including 
party political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority 
Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
Where your authority provides you with resources (for example telephone, computer and other 
IT facilities, transport or support from council employees), you must only use these resources 
or employees for carrying out your local authority business and any other activity which your 
authority has authorised you to use them for. 
 
You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources made by your 
authority. Failure to comply with the authority’s rules is likely to amount to a breach of the 
code. 
 
If you authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use your authority’s 
resources, you must take care to ensure that this is allowed by the authority’s rules. 
 
You should never use council resources for purely political purposes, including designing and 
distributing party political material produced for publicity purposes. 
 
You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your office. 
 
You have a duty to promote and support high standards of conduct and be consistent with the 
seven general principles attached to the Code.  
 

Page 212

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 7 
 

 

INTERESTS 
 
Register of interests 

Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of interests. A 
copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the 
authority’s website. 
 
You have two types of registrable interests   
 

a) A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and 
b) Interests other than pecuniary interests that the Council has decided should be 

registered 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
1. These are interests which must be notified to the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 

days beginning with the day on which you become a member or co-opted member of the 
authority in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Localism Act 2011. These 
are enforced by criminal sanction, and failure to declare is a criminal offence. 

 
2. You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and fellow members 

know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The register is a 
document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises, and so allows others 
to know what interests you have, and whether they might give rise to a potential conflict 
of interest. 

 
3. The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether or not you should 

declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others 
think that a potential conflict might arise.  It is also important that the public know about 
any interest that might have to be declared by you or other members, so that decision 
making is seen by the public as open and honest.  This helps to ensure that public 
confidence in the integrity of local government is maintained.  

 
4. A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means 

spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person 
with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) of the following descriptions: 

 
(a) Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 

or gain 

(b)  Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992).  

 
(c) Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which 

the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority under which 
goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and which has not 
been fully discharged.  

 
(d) Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 

authority.   

Page 213

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 8 
 

 

 
(e) Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 

relevant authority for a month or longer.   
 

(f) Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is the relevant 
authority; and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 
interest. 

 
(g) Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your 

knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
either the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or if that share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which 
the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.  

 
For the purposes of the foregoing “relevant authority” means the District Council, and “relevant 
period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which you notify the Monitoring 
Officer of your disclosable pecuniary interest.  
 
 
Notification of Other Interests 
 
5. In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests, you must, within 28 days of the Code 

being adopted by or applied to your authority; or your election or appointment to office 
(where that is later), notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your interests 
within the following categories, which the Council has decided must be included in the 
register of interests: 

. 
(a)  Details of  any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the District Council; 

(b) Details of any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and which –  

(i) exercises functions of a public nature,  

(ii)  is directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii)  is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing public 
opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade union); 

(c)  Details of any persons from who you have a received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts and hospitality worth £50 
or over that you receive personally in connection with your official duties).   

 

What is a “body exercising functions of a public nature”? 

6. Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such bodies, here are some criteria 
to consider when deciding whether or not a body meets that definition: 

 Does that body carry out a public service? 

 Is the body taking the place of local or central government in carrying out the function? 

 Is the body (including one outsourced in the private sector) exercising a function 
delegated to it by a public authority? 

 Is the function exercised under legislation or according to some statutory power? 

Page 214

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 9 
 

 

 Can the body be judicially reviewed? 

Unless you answer “yes” to one of the above questions, it is unlikely that the body in your case 
is exercising functions of a public nature. 

Examples of bodies included in this definition: government agencies, other councils, public 
health bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms-length 
management organisations carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school 
governing bodies. 

 

If you need further information or specific advice, please contact your Monitoring Officer. 

 

What do things mean? 

 

Here are some definitions from the legislation that may help you.  Ask for advice if necessary: 

 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in which 

the relevant 

person has a 

beneficial 

interest” 

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 

corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the 

securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an 

industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over 

land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person 

(alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive 

income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant 

authority” 

means the authority of which M is a member; 

Page 215

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I9AA4F73014C911E1A6718D7CED27531D


October21 Page 10 
 

 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M 

gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 

31(7), as the case may be, of the Act; 

“relevant 

person” 

means  

 

(i) M  

(ii) M's spouse or civil partner, 

(iii) a person with whom M is living as husband and wife, 

or 

(iv) a person with whom M is living as if they were civil 

partners, 

 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 

units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of 

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 

securities of any description, other than money deposited with 

a building society. 

 

 

Gifts and Hospitality 

7. You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of receiving it. 

8. You should ask yourself would I have been given this if I was not on the Council?  If you 
are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, we recommend that you register 
it or speak to the Monitoring Officer or your parish clerk where appropriate. 

9. You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a 
member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or gifts which you do not 
accept.  However, you should always register a gift or hospitality if it could be perceived 
as something given to you because of your position or if your authority requires you to. 

 

 

  

Page 216

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E014C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=17&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I5FACA830E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB


October21 Page 11 
 

 

What if I do not know the value of a gift or hospitality? 

10. The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you should register it, 
as a matter of good practice and in accordance with the principles of openness and 
accountability in public life. 

11. You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth.  Also, an accumulation 
of small gifts you received from the same source over a short period that add up to £50 
or more should be registered.       

Changes to Interests 

12. You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to any interest 
registered notify the Monitoring Officer of the  details of that new interest or change. 

Disclosure of Interests 

13. Where you have a registrable interest in any business of your authority, and where you 
are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of that interest, and you attend 
a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must disclose to that 
meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that 
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. 

Sensitive interests 

14. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of an interest could lead to you, or a 
person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the Monitoring 
Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the register that are 
made available for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude details 
of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the details of which are withheld. 

 
What is sensitive information? 
15. It may include your sensitive employment (such as certain scientific research or the 

Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to create serious risk of violence or 
intimidation against you or someone who lives with you. 

 
16. You should provide this information to your Monitoring Officer and explain your concerns 

regarding the disclosure of the sensitive information; including why it is likely to create a 
serious risk that you or a person who lives with you will be subjected to violence or 
intimidation.  You do not need to include this information in your register of interests, if 
your Monitoring Officer agrees but you need to disclose at meetings the fact that you have 
a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concern.  

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
17. If you are present at a meeting of the Council, Executive or any committee, sub-

committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, and you have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the 
meeting: 

 You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting. 

 You  may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 

 If  the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the  meeting. 

 If  the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, you 
must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 

 

Dispensations 
 
19. The Monitoring Officer or Audit and Governance Committee may grant you a 

dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on 

Page 217

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 12 
 

 

a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. These circumstances are 
where: 

 
1. It is considered that without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from 

participating in any particular business would be so great a proportion of the body 

transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the business.   

2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups on 

the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter the likely 

outcome of any vote relating to the business.   

3. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Executive would be able to 

participate on this matter. 

4. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests of persons 

living in the authority’s area 

5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

 
Offences 
 
20. It is a criminal offence to 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 
days of election 

 Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the 
register 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting 

 Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

 As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring 
Officer within 28 days of the interest. 

 Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in notifying 
the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in disclosing such 
interest to a meeting 

 

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the 
standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years. 
 
 
Bias/Predetermination 
 
Although not part of the Code, members need to be clear that they are not biased going into 
the decision making process. 
 
If you have a personal interest in a matter as a result of the matter affecting the well-being or 
financial position of yourself, member of your family or close association more than it would 
affect the majority of other people in the ward or electoral divisions affected by the decision, 
or in the authority’s areas or constituency then there may be potential for 
bias/predetermination. 
 
The rules against bias say that there are three distinct elements.  The first seeks accuracy in 
public decision-making and the second seeks the absence of prejudice or partiality on the part 
of you as the decision-maker. An accurate decision is more likely to be achieved by a decision-

Page 218

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 13 
 

 

maker who is in fact impartial or disinterested in the outcome of the decision and who puts 
aside any personal prejudices.  

The third requirement is for public confidence in the decision-making process. Even though 
the decision-maker may in fact be scrupulously impartial, the appearance of bias can itself call 
into question the legitimacy of the decision-making process. In general, the rule against bias 
looks to the appearance or risk of bias rather than bias in fact, in order to ensure that justice 
should not only be done, but should manifestly and undoubtedly be seen to be done.  

To varying degrees, these “requirements” might be seen to provide the rationales behind what 
are generally taken to be three separate rules against bias: “automatic” (or “presumed”) bias, 
“actual” bias and “appearance” bias. 

The rationale behind “automatic” or “presumed” bias appears to be that in certain situations 
(such as if you have a pecuniary or proprietary interest in the outcome of the proceedings) 
then it must be presumed that you are incapable of impartiality. Since a motive for bias is 
thought to be so obvious in such cases, the decisions are not allowed to stand even though 
no investigation is made into whether the decision-maker was biased in fact.  In these 
circumstances you should not participate in a decision. 

The Localism Act 2011 has enshrined the rules relating to pre-disposition and 
predetermination into statute.  In essence you are not taken to have had, or appeared to have 
had, a closed mind when making a decision just because you have previously done anything 
that directly or in-directly indicated what view you may take in relation to a matter and that 
matter was relevant to the decision.   

So, you are entitled to have a pre-disposition one way or another as long as you have not pre-
determined the outcome.  You are able to express an opinion providing that you come to the 
relevant meeting with an open mind, able to take account of all of the evidence and make your 
decision on the day. 
 
What does “affecting well-being” or “financial position” mean? 
 
The term “well-being” can be described as a condition of contentment and happiness.  
Anything that could affect your quality of life, either positively or negatively, is likely to affect 
your well-being. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your family or close personal associates positively and 
negatively.  So if you or they have the potential to gain or lose from a matter under 
consideration, a personal interest would need to be declared in both situations. 
 
Who is a member of your family or close association? 
 
A member of your family should be given wide meaning.  It includes a partner (someone you 
are married to, your civil partner, or someone you live with in a similar capacity), a parent, 
parent-in-law, a son or daughter, a stepson, or stepdaughter, the child of a partner, a brother 
or sister of yourself or your partner, a grandparent, a grandchild, an uncle or aunt, a nephew 
or niece and the partners of any of these people. 
 
A person with whom you have a close association is someone that you are in either regular or 
irregular contact with over a period of time who is more than an acquaintance.  It is someone 
a reasonable member of the public might think you would be prepared to favour or 
disadvantage when discussing a matter that affects them.  It may be a friend, a colleague, a 
business associate or someone whom you know through general social contacts. 
 
What if I am not aware of my personal interest? 
 

Page 219

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2



October21 Page 14 
 

 

Clearly you cannot be expected to declare something of which you are unaware.  However 
you should not ignore the existence of interests which, from the point of view of a reasonable 
and objective observer, you should have been aware. If you become aware, or should have 
realised, that you have an interest during consideration of the item, you should immediately 
declare this and take the appropriate action. 
 
When must I leave the room where the meeting is held? 
 
You must leave immediately before any debate starts. 
 
Non participation in case of pecuniary interest 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 
Subject to the following paragraph below if you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any 
matter to be considered, or being considered, at the meeting, then you should declare that 
interest to the meeting and should leave the room whilst any discussion or vote takes place. 
 
If a dispensation has been granted to you in relation to a disclosable pecuniary interest then, 
subject to the terms of the dispensation, you may be relieved from the above restrictions but 
will still be required to declare the interest to the meeting. 
 
Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the Council, you may 
attend a Meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend 
the Meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise.  Once any 
such representations etc have been made, the Member should leave the room whilst any 
discussion or vote takes place. 
 
This would mean that as under current arrangements, Members will leave the room during an 
item in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 

 
In the interests of transparency it is good practice for you to make the nature of a disclosable 
interest known when such a matter arises at a meeting.  You should identify the nature of the 
interest which you have in any matter so that is known and understood by all and is a matter 
of public record.  If a declaration is not made, other than through the register, it would not 
necessarily be apparent to anyone who is present at the meeting why a particular Member is 
not participating or voting in any matter. 
 

Page 220

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Grounds Maintenance Contract for Housing Service
	9 The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2022
	Appendix 1 - Borough of Barrow-in-Furness (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2022
	Appendix 2 - Report to Executive Committee - November 2021n-Furness (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2022
	November 2021 TRO Report
	TRO Report Appendix 1
	TRO Report Appendix 2
	TRO Report - Appendix 3
	TRO Report - Appendix 4
	TRO Report - Appendix 5


	10 High Street Heritage Action Zone Public Realm
	11 Future Management Arrangements on Piel Island
	12 Procurement Strategy
	Enc. 1 for Procurement Strategy

	13 Officer Delegation Scheme
	Enc. 1 for Officer Delegation Scheme

	14 Code of Conduct and Guidance Review
	Enc. 1 for Code conduct and guidance review
	Enc. 2 for Code conduct and guidance review


